
                                                                             
  
   

 

 
Regular Session 

Council Agenda Packet 
October 19, 2023 

 
 



CITY OF CROWLEY 
CITY COUNCIL 

Council Regular Session 
October 19, 2023 
ATTENDANCE SHEET 

 
          Work session Regular 
 

Council Member Johnny Shotwell, Place 1   _________ __________ 
 
Council Member Jerry Beck, Place 2    _________ __________ 
 
Council Member Jesse Johnson, Place 3   _________ __________ 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jim Hirth, Place 4    _________ __________ 
 
Council Member Matt Foster, Place 5    _________ __________ 
 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath, Place 6   _________ __________ 
 
Mayor Billy Davis       _________ __________ 

 
Staff:  
 

Robert Loftin, City Manager     _________ __________ 
 
Lori Watson, Finance Director/Deputy City Mgr   _________ __________ 
 
Jack Thompson, EDC Director/Asst City Mgr   _________ __________ 
 
Rob Allibon, City Attorney      _________ __________ 
 
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary     _________ __________ 
 
Pleasant Brooks, Fire Chief     _________ __________ 
 
Kit Long, Chief of Police      _________ __________ 
 
Mike Rocamontes, Public Works Director   _________ __________ 
 
Matt Elgin, Direct of Projects & Utilities    _________ __________ 
 
Rachel Roberts, Planning & Comm Dev Director  _________ __________ 
 
Cristina Winner, Community Services Director   _________ __________ 
 
Lisa Hansen, HR Administrator     _________ __________ 
 
Julie Hepler, Special Event Coordinator .   _________ __________ 
 
Jay Hinton, Media Relations     _________ __________ 



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 1 of 4 

 
Citizens may address the Council by filling out a blue “Citizen Participation” card to discuss any issue that is on 
the Agenda.  Please turn in cards to the City Secretary.  Speakers are limited to three minutes (if using a translator, 
the time limit will be doubled).   

WORK SESSION - October 19, 2023 - 6:30 pm 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

II. NON-ACTION ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
1. None.  

DISCUSSION OF ITEMS LISTED ON THE AGENDA 
III. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted 
by one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held September 21, 2023 and 
the special called meeting on September 26, 2023. 

2. Consider approving an Interlocal Agreement for administrative cost funding for Section 5310 
Program between the Fort Worth Transportation Authority and The City of Crowley, Texas, FY 2023-
24 and authorizing the Mayor to execute said Agreement. 

IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. None 

 
V. CITY BUSINESS 

1. Discuss and consider approving the City Manager or designee to finalize negotiations and execute an 
agreement with Johnson Construction Services for Construction Manager at Risk services associated 
with the remodel project of the City Hall Fire Station. 

2. Discuss and authorize a new Interlocal Agreement with Tarrant County Public Health for food service 
and swimming pool inspections. 

3. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance 10-2023-509, an ordinance adjusting the boundary 
between the City of Crowley and the City of Fort Worth at Crowley Rd and the future McPherson 
Blvd extension. 

4. Authorize the City Manager or designee to execute a contract with SAFEbuilt for backup building 
inspection and plan review services. 

5. Discuss and consider Special Event Permit application for the Karis Grand Opening Event to be held 
on Saturday, October 28, 2023. 

6. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance No 10-2023-508, amending Appendix A, Schedule of 
Rates, Fees, and Charges, Section (22) Other fees and charges for community development, by 
amending the Subdivision construction inspection fees. 

7. Consider approval of resolution R10-2023-401, authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a contract 
agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for the installation of FLOCK Safety 
Automated License Place Recognition (ALPR) cameras on TxDOT property and right-of-way. 

 AGENDA 
CROWLEY CITY COUNCIL 

OCTOBER 19, 2023 
WORK SESSION - 6:30 p.m. 

Crowley City Hall 
201 E. Main Street 
Crowley TX 76036 



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 2 of 4 

8. Discuss and consider approval of the annual contract (October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024) 
for the fire and ambulance service with Tarrant County Emergency Services District No. 1 and 
authorizing the Mayor to execute said contract. 

9. Discuss and consider approving a special permit for the Christmas in Crowley Lighted Parade. 
10. Discuss and consider approving Resolution R10-2023-402, a resolution accepting conveyance of a 

20-foot-wide drainage easement on lot 7R, block 12 of the Mesa Vista Medical Center. 
VI. ADJOURNMENT  



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 3 of 4 

 
Citizens may address the Council by filling out a blue “Citizen Participation” card to discuss any issue that is on 
the Agenda.  Please turn in cards to the City Secretary.  Speakers are limited to three minutes (if using a translator, 
the time limit will be doubled).   

REGULAR SESSION - October 19, 2023 - 7:00 pm 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

II. INVOCATION 
 

III. PLEDGE TO ALLEGIANCE TO THE AMERICAN AND TEXAS FLAGS 
"I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America and to the Republic for which it stands, one nation, 
under God, indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for all." 
"Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state, under God, one and indivisible." 
IV. PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 

1. Presentation of Pavement Survey - Bill Bateman, Asst PW Director 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. 
There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda 
and will be considered separately. 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held September 21, 2023 and 
the special called meeting on September 26, 2023. 

2. Consider approving an Interlocal Agreement for administrative cost funding for Section 5310 
Program between the Fort Worth Transportation Authority and The City of Crowley, Texas, FY 2023-
24 and authorizing the Mayor to execute said Agreement. 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. None 

VII. CITY BUSINESS 
1. Discuss and consider approving the City Manager or designee to finalize negotiations and execute an 

agreement with Johnson Construction Services for Construction Manager at Risk services associated 
with the remodel project of the City Hall Fire Station. 

2. Discuss and authorize a new Interlocal Agreement with Tarrant County Public Health for food service 
and swimming pool inspections. 

3. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance 10-2023-509, an ordinance adjusting the boundary 
between the City of Crowley and the City of Fort Worth at Crowley Rd and the future McPherson 
Blvd extension. 

4. Authorize the City Manager or designee to execute a contract with SAFEbuilt for backup building 
inspection and plan review services. 

5. Discuss and consider Special Event Permit application for the Karis Grand Opening Event to be held 
on Saturday, October 28, 2023. 

6. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance No 10-2023-508, amending Appendix A, Schedule of 
Rates, Fees, and Charges, Section (22) Other fees and charges for community development, by 
amending the Subdivision construction inspection fees. 

 AGENDA 
CROWLEY CITY COUNCIL 

OCTOBER 19, 2023 
REGULAR SESSION - 7:00 p.m. 

Crowley City Hall 
201 E. Main Street 
Crowley TX 76028 



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 4 of 4 

7. Consider approval of resolution R10-2023-401, authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a contract 
agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for the installation of FLOCK Safety 
Automated License Place Recognition (ALPR) cameras on TxDOT property and right-of-way. 

8. Discuss and consider approval of the annual contract (October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024) 
for the fire and ambulance service with Tarrant County Emergency Services District No. 1 and 
authorizing the Mayor to execute said contract. 

9. Discuss and consider approving a special permit for the Christmas in Crowley Lighted Parade. 
10. Discuss and consider approving Resolution R10-2023-402, a resolution accepting conveyance of a 

20-foot-wide drainage easement on lot 7R, block 12 of the Mesa Vista Medical Center. 
VIII. ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Reports 
None 

2. Appointments/Reappointments 
None 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT 
If you wish to make a public comment or discuss subjects not listed on the agenda, please fill out a (yellow) Visitor’s Participation 
card and submit to the City Secretary.  There will be no formal actions taken on subjects presented during public comments.  
Please NOTE council may NOT address or converse with you regarding a NON-AGENDA ITEM. The public comment period 
will only allow members of the public to present ideas and information to the City Officials and Staff.   
 

X. ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
Items of community interest include expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; information regarding 
holiday schedules; honorary recognitions of city officials, employees or citizens; reminders about upcoming 
events sponsored by the city or other entity that is scheduled to be attended by a city official or employee; and 
announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety 
 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Pursuant to Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, the Council reserves the right to convene in Executive 
Session(s), from time to time as deemed necessary during this meeting for any posted agenda item to receive 
advice from its attorney as permitted by law, or to discuss the following as permitted by Government Code: 

1. Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) 
2. Section 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property) 
3. Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters) 
4. Section 551.087 (Business Prospect/Economic Development) 

 

XII. RECONVENE AND TAKE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Reconvene into open session and take any necessary action resulting from items posted and legally discussed in Closed Session. 
 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that this Agenda of the City Council Meeting to be held on Thursday, October 19, 2023, of 
the governing body of the City of Crowley is a true and correct copy posted on ____________________, 20____ at _________ am/ pm to 
the City Website and at Crowley City Hall, a place convenient and readily accessible to the public at all times. 
 

City of Crowley 
 

______________________________________ 
Carol C. Konhauser, City Secretary 

NOTICE:  A quorum of the Crime Control and Prevention District Board of Directors and the Economic Development Board of Directors 
will be present at this meeting; however, neither Board will take action on any items on this posted agenda. 

THE CITY COUNCIL RESERVES THE RIGHT OF THE FOLLOWING: 
1.  ITEMS DO NOT HAVE TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE SAME ORDER AS SHOWN ON THIS AGENDA; 
2. THE COUNCIL MAY CONTINUE OR RECESS ITS DELIBERATIONS TO THE NEXT CALENDAR DAY IF IT DEEMS IT NECESSARY. 
The Crowley City Hall is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations must be made 48 hours prior 
to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary’s Office at (817) 297-2201 ext. 4000, or email ckonhauser@ci.crowley.tx.us for further information. 



City of Crowley
 Pavement Survey Update

October 10, 2023



Street Network Survey
 Public Works partnered with Nexco Paving Solutions to perform a 

comprehensive pavement survey.
 All city maintained roadways were surveyed.
 Roadway segments were designated an overall PCI (Pavement 

Condition Index) score based on 7 categories from Good (86-100) 
to Failed (0-10).

 14% of surveyed streets (10 Miles) rated poor with most segments 
located near the downtown area. 

 21% of the streets rated fair (15 miles) scattered throughout the 
city.

 Current Average PCI Rating for entire street network 83.0
 Average PCI Rating will drop to 68.5 in 2026 if proactive street 

maintenance strategies are not implemented.



Overall Street PCI Ratings 2023 – 83



2026 Predicted PCI Using Current Strategy - 69 



PCI Rating Index – Asphalt Roadways



PCI Rating Index – Concrete  Roadways



Pavement Preservation 
 Pavement preservation programs are a planned strategy utilizing cost-effective 

treatments to extend pavement life and save tax payer dollars versus costly 
street rebuild projects. 

 Placing the proper treatment on the roadway at the right time is critical  to 
extend life of the roadway.



Maintenance Treatments - Asphalt Streets

 Crack Seal - Seals surface cracks in the roadway to prevent 
moisture infiltration into subgrade.

 HA-5 – Used in conjunction with crack seal to seal the entire 
roadway surface and rejuvenate the street.

 Mill and Overlay – Includes milling the asphalt surface 2-3 inches 
and replacing with new asphalt. 



Maintenance Treatments – Concrete Streets

 Crack and Joint Seal -Seals cracks in the roadway and joints to 
prevent moisture infiltration into subgrade.

 Concrete Slab Replacement - Removal and replacement of failed 
concrete slabs.

 



Asphalt Maintenance Versus Reconstruction 
Maintenance Treatments
 Crack Seal - $.04 per square yard.
 HA-5 - $4.10 Per square yard.
 Mill and Overlay - $19 per square yard.

Reconstruction Costs
 Asphalt Reclamation -  $54 per square yard.
 Asphalt Street Rebuild - $85 per square yard.
 City/County ILA - $28 per square yard plus concrete work.



Concrete Maintenance Versus Reconstruction
Preventative Maintenance
 Concrete Joint and Crack Seal - $.04 per square yard.

 Concrete Panel Replacement - $84 per square yard.

 Reconstruction
 Residential Streets - $142 per square yard.

 Arterial/Collector Streets - $175-$200 per square yard.



Pavement Maintenance Strategy
Asphalt Streets
 Propose 3 and 5 year street maintenance plans for 

arterial/collector and residential roadways predicted to rate very 
poor to serious by 2026.

 Begin work in areas near downtown area per the pavement survey 
report and move outward in following years. 

 Use combination of contracts, City/County ILA’s, and internal crews 
to perform various pavement repairs and resurfacing.

 Roadways that have a current rating of serious and very poor (11-
40) will require more extensive maintenance treatments. 



Pavement Maintenance Strategy
Concrete Streets
 Develop 3 and 5 year plans to address current failed concrete 

sections and areas predicted to rate poor to serious by 2026.

 Use a combination of internal crews for small repairs and develop 
contract for large slab removal projects.

 Bid a miscellaneous concrete contract to assist with concrete 
maintenance, and prepare roadways for resurfacing programs 
including installing ADA Ramps and replacing broken sections of curb 
and gutter.



Street Selection Process
Residential Streets - Asphalt 
 Designate multiple maintenance zones starting in downtown area 

and work outward per the street assessment survey.
 Prioritize work based on pavement survey, citizen calls and streets 

where repeated pothole repairs are required. 
 Utilize neighborhood approach when developing street resurfacing 

programs to help revitalize neighborhoods and reduce mobilization 
costs.

 Some residential areas may require a combination different 
resurfacing treatments based on current street rating. 



Street Selection Process
Arterial And Collector Streets – Asphalt
 Develop long range resurfacing plan based on pavement 

survey.

 Prioritize resurfacing lists based on pavement condition, traffic 
counts, number of calls for repairs and schedule around 
planned development projects.

 Arterial and Collector roads will typically require a mill and 
overlay treatment, but some may require asphalt reclamation.



Street Selection

Concrete Streets
 Utilize pavement survey to target areas that currently need repair or 

predicted to rate very poor or serious by 2026.

 Develop 3 and 5 year concrete repair plan.

 Target high volume roadways such as arterial and collectors then 
move to residential areas. 



Moving Forward
 Develop proposed 3 and 5 year roadway maintenance plan with 

estimated costs for council consideration.
 Upon approval coordinate proposed plans with franchise utilities 

including Water Department to ensure there are no underground 
conflicts to avoid a new resurfaced roadway being damaged soon 
after resurfacing.

 Schedule required preliminary maintenance for 2024 resurfacing 
programs such as crack seal, spot base failure repairs and 
concrete work over the fall and winter months in preparation for 
resurfacing programs during the late spring and summer.

 Discuss public relations strategy to inform the public of the City’s 
new street maintenance strategy.



QUESTIONS



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Carol Konhauser 
City Secretary MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: V-1 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held 
September 21, 2023 and the special called meeting on September 26, 2023. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

Consider approval of minutes as presented. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval of the minutes as presented; council consideration is respectfully requested. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

Approval of the minutes does not affect the budget. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Minutes 
 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 21, 2023  Page | 1 of 7 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION HELD SEPTEMBER 21, 2023.  The City 
Council of the City of Crowley, Texas met in Work Session on Thursday, September 21, 2023, at 6:30 pm 
in the City Council Chambers, 201 East Main Street, Crowley City Hall, Crowley, Texas. 
 
Present were  Mayor Pro-Tem Johnny Shotwell, City Council Place 1 
 Council Member Jerry Beck, City Council Place 2 
 Council Member Jesse Johnson, City Council Place 3 
 Council Member Jim Hirth, City Council Place 4 
 Vacant Place 5 
 Council Member Scott Gilbreath, City Council Place 6 
 

City staff included:   City Manager Robert Loftin 
 Deputy City Mngr/Finance Director, Lori Watson 
 Asst City Mngr/EDC Director, Jack Thompson 
 City Attorney, Rob Allibon 
 City Secretary, Carol Konhauser 
 Fire Chief, Pleasant Brooks 
 Police Chief, Kit Long 
 Public Works Director, Mike Rocamontes 
 Director of Projects & Utilities, Matt Elgin 
 Planning and Comm Dev Director, Rachel Roberts 
 Community Services Director, Cristina Winner 
 HR Administrator, Lisa Hansen 
  

Absent: Mayor Billy P. Davis  
 

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
Mayor Pro Tem Jim Hirth called the Work Session to order at 6:30 p.m.  City Secretary Carol Konhauser 
called roll and noted a quorum was present.   
 
DISCUSSION OF NON-ACTION ITEMS 

1. None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by 
one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held September 7, 2023 
and the Special Called meeting held on September 11, 2023.   
No discussion.   
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Hold a Public Hearing and consider approval of the proposed Crowley Economic 

Development 4B FY 2023-24 Operating Budget. 
No discussion 

2. Hold a Public Hearing to receive input on the Operating Budget beginning October 
1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024. 
No discussion 

3. Hold a Public Hearing to receive input on the proposed 2023 ad valorem property tax 
rate. 
No discussion 

4. Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider approval of Ordinance 09-2023-507 for 
a specific use permit to allow a CBD/ Tobacco Shop in the General Commercial 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 21, 2023  Page | 2 of 7 

zoning district at 824 N Crowley Rd, whose legal description is John H. Lucas Survey, 
Abstract 932 Tract 1D07A, as requested by 7th Heaven LLC. 
 
No discussion 
 

CITY BUSINESS 
 

1. Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 09-2023-504, an ordinance of the City of 
Crowley, Texas approving and adopting the budget for fiscal year 2023-24, beginning 
October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024, providing a severability clause; and 
declaring an effective date. 
 

No discussion 
 

2. Consider and act upon the ratification of the property tax revenue increase reflected in the 
Proposed FY 2023-24 City of Crowley Operating Budget. 
 
No discussion 
 

3. Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 09-2023-505, an ordinance of the City of 
Crowley, Texas affixing and levying Municipal Ad Valorem Taxes for the fiscal year 
2023-24, beginning October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024, and for each year 
thereafter until otherwise provided on all taxable property within the corporate limits 
of the City of Crowley as of January 1, 2024 to provide revenues for the payment of 
current expenses and all outstanding debts of the city; directing the assessment 
thereof; providing for due dates and delinquent dates for payment of taxes together 
with penalties and interest thereon; providing for approval of the tax rolls presented 
to the City Council; repealing conflicting ordinances providing a severability clause 
and declaring an effective date. 
 
No discussion 
 

4. Discuss and consider approval of the Crime Control and Prevention District FY2023-
24 Budget Amendment #1. 
 
No discussion 
 

5. Consider revisions to Pay Classification Plan. 
 
No discussion 
 

6. Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution R09-2023-399 of the City of Crowley 
amending the Staffing Plan. 
 
No discussion 
 

7. Discuss and consider approval of a request by Deer Creek Estates for a variance from 
city code Section 102-122, “Schedule for Permanent Signs” to allow a reader board 
sign in an R-2 single family residential zoning district. 
 
Planning and Community Development Director Rachel Roberts explained to council this 
was a request to replace an existing sign already in Deer Creek Estates with a reader board 
type sign.  She further explained that although reader board signs are not typically 
authorized in single family residential zoning, this sign would not be located directly on 
the main throughfare.  Additionally, she added the Planning and Zoning commission had 
voted to approve the variance.  
 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 21, 2023  Page | 3 of 7 

8. Discuss and consider approving Resolution R09-2023-398, a resolution approving a 
variance for an Alcoholic Beverage Permit Application submitted by Rouse Holding 
Group, LLC, for the business located at 117 S Texas St, known as Moon Tower Pizza 
and; authorizing the City Secretary to certify the TABC permit application. 
 
City Secretary Carol Konhauser explained this was a request for a variance to allow for an 
alcoholic beverage permit for a business that would be located within 300 feet of a church.  
Moontower pizza is located approximately 215 feet from a property that is designated as a 
church.  City Secretary Konhauser added that the church has not been active in a couple 
years, but that the property is still designated as such on the tax appraisal district website.  
 

9. Discuss and consider canceling the Regular scheduled meeting of the Crowley City 
Council for October 5, 2023 due to lack of quorum. 
 
No discussion 
 

10. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance No 09-2023-506, amending Appendix A, 
Schedule of Rates, Fees, and Charges, Section (32) Public Records Charges, by 
increasing notary service fees and deleting obsolete or duplicated fees. 
 
City Secretary Konhauser explained this was to update the notary fees as authorized by HB 255. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
As there was no further business to discuss, the work session was adjourned at 6:45 pm. 
  



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 21, 2023  Page | 4 of 7 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION HELD SEPTEMBER 21, 2023. The 
City Council of the City of Crowley, Texas met in Regular Session on Thursday, September 21, 2023, at 
7:00 pm in the City Council Chambers, 201 East Main Street, Crowley City Hall, Crowley, Texas. 
 
Present were  Mayor Pro-Tem Johnny Shotwell, City Council Place 1 
 Council Member Jerry Beck, City Council Place 2 
 Council Member Jesse Johnson, City Council Place 3 
 Council Member Jim Hirth, City Council Place 4 
 Vacant Place 5 
 Council Member Scott Gilbreath, City Council Place 6 
 

City staff included:   City Manager Robert Loftin 
 Deputy City Mngr/Finance Director, Lori Watson 
 Asst City Mngr/EDC Director, Jack Thompson 
 City Attorney, Rob Allibon 
 City Secretary, Carol Konhauser 
 Fire Chief, Pleasant Brooks 
 Police Chief, Kit Long 
 Public Works Director, Mike Rocamontes 
 Director of Projects & Utilities, Matt Elgin 
 Planning and Comm Dev Director, Rachel Roberts 
 Community Services Director, Cristina Winner 
 HR Administrator, Lisa Hansen 
  

Absent: Mayor Billy P. Davis  
 

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
Mayor Pro Tem Jim Hirth called the Regular Session to order at 7:00 p.m.  City Secretary Carol Konhauser 
called roll and noted a quorum was present. 
 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Invocation was given by Council Member Jesse Johnson followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
American and Texas Flags. 
 
PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 

1. National Night Out Proclamation. 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath read the National Night Our Proclamation 

2. Fire Prevention Week Proclamation.  
 
Council Member Jerry Beck read the Fire Prevention Week Proclamation. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be 
enacted by one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held September 7, 2023 
and the Special Called meeting held on September 11, 2023. 
Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda item(s), second by 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath; council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion 
carried 6-0.  
 

PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Hold a Public Hearing and consider approval of the proposed Crowley Economic 
Development 4B FY 2023-24 Operating Budget. 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 21, 2023  Page | 5 of 7 

Mayor Pro Tem Hirth opened the public hearing at 7:07 pm for anyone to speak either in favor of 
or in opposition.  When nobody came forward, he closed the public hearing at 7:08 pm. 
 
Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to approve the FY 2023-2024 budget for the 
Crowley Economic Development 4B Corporation, second by Council Member Scott Gilbreath, 
council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

2. Hold a Public Hearing to receive input on the Operating Budget beginning October 1, 
2023 and ending September 30, 2024. 
Mayor Pro Tem Jim Hirth opened the public hearing at 7:08 pm for anyone to speak either in favor 
of or in opposition.  When nobody came forward, he closed the public hearing at 7:08 pm. 
 

3. Hold a Public Hearing to receive input on the proposed 2023 ad valorem property tax 
rate. 
Mayor Pro Tem Hirth opened the public hearing at 7:09 pm for anyone to speak either in favor of 
or in opposition.  When nobody came forward, he closed the public hearing at 7:09 pm. 
 

4. Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider approval of Ordinance 09-2023-507 for 
a specific use permit to allow a CBD/ Tobacco Shop in the General Commercial zoning 
district at 824 N Crowley Rd, whose legal description is John H. Lucas Survey, Abstract 
932 Tract 1D07A, as requested by 7th Heaven LLC.None. 
Planning and Community Development Director Rachel Roberts stepped forward to 
explain this was a request for a SUP to operate at CBD and vape shop at 824 N Crowley 
Rd.  She stated it the Planning and Zoning Commission did recommend approval with the 
condition they comply with the statute on age restrictions and that total signage not exceed 
15% of the total wall area and not more than 50% of the window space. 
Mayor Pro Tem Jim Hirth opened the public hearing at 7:10 pm for anyone to speak 
either in favor of or in opposition.  When nobody came forward, he closed the public 
hearing at 7:10 pm. 
 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath made the motion to approve Ordinance 09-2023-507 for 
a SUP permit to allow a CBD/Tabacco Shop, second by Council Member Jerry Beck.  
Council Member Jesse Johnson voted nay on the motion.  Motion carried 5-1. 
 
 

CITY BUSINESS 

1. Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 09-2023-504, an ordinance of the City of 
Crowley, Texas approving and adopting the budget for fiscal year 2023-24, beginning 
October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024, providing a severability clause; and 
declaring an effective date. 
 

Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to adopt Ordinance 09-2023-504; second by 
Council Member Jerry Beck, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. 
Motion carried 6-0. 
 

2. Consider and act upon the ratification of the property tax revenue increase reflected in the 
Proposed FY 2023-24 City of Crowley Operating Budget. 
 
Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to ratify the property tax revenue increase 
reflected in the proposed FY2023-2024 City of Crowley Operating Budget, second by Council 
Member Scott Gilbreath, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion 
carried 6-0. 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 21, 2023  Page | 6 of 7 

 
3. Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 09-2023-505, an ordinance of the City of 

Crowley, Texas affixing and levying Municipal Ad Valorem Taxes for the fiscal year 
2023-24, beginning October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024, and for each year 
thereafter until otherwise provided on all taxable property within the corporate limits 
of the City of Crowley as of January 1, 2024 to provide revenues for the payment of 
current expenses and all outstanding debts of the city; directing the assessment 
thereof; providing for due dates and delinquent dates for payment of taxes together 
with penalties and interest thereon; providing for approval of the tax rolls presented 
to the City Council; repealing conflicting ordinances providing a severability clause 
and declaring an effective date. 
 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath made the motion to adopt Ordinance 09-2023-505, and 
moved that the property tax rate be increased by the adoption of a tax rate of $0.594890 
per $100, which is effectively a 9.2 percent increase in the tax rate, and move adoption of 
the ordinance as presented, second by Council Member Jerry Beck.  A roll call vote was 
taken, Council Member Johnny Shotwell voted Aye; Council Member Jerry Beck voted 
Aye; Council Member Jesse Johnson voted Aye; Council Member Jim Hirth voted Aye; 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath voted Aye; council voted 6-0 to adopt the motion as 
presented. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

4. Discuss and consider approval of the Crime Control and Prevention District FY2023-
24 Budget Amendment #1. 
 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath made the motion to approve the Crime Control and 
Prevention District FY2023-24 Budget Amendment #1; second by Council Member Jesse 
Johnson, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

5. Consider revisions to Pay Classification Plan. 
 
Council Member Jerry Beck made the motion to approve the revisions to the Pay 
Classification Plan, second by Council Member Scott Gilbreath, council voted 
unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

6. Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution R09-2023-399 of the City of Crowley 
amending the Staffing Plan. 
 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath made the motion to approve Resolution R09-2023-399, 
amending the staffing plan, second by Council Member Jerry Beck, council voted 
unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

7. Discuss and consider approval of a request by Deer Creek Estates for a variance from 
city code Section 102-122, “Schedule for Permanent Signs” to allow a reader board 
sign in an R-2 single family residential zoning district. 
 
Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to approve the sign variance request 
submitted by Deer Creek Estates to allow for a reader board type sign, second by Council 
Member Scott Gilbreath, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. 
Motion carried 6-0. 
 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 21, 2023  Page | 7 of 7 

 
8. Discuss and consider approving Resolution R09-2023-398, a resolution approving a 

variance for an Alcoholic Beverage Permit Application submitted by Rouse Holding 
Group, LLC, for the business located at 117 S Texas St, known as Moon Tower Pizza 
and; authorizing the City Secretary to certify the TABC permit application. 
 
Council Member Jerry Beck made the motion to approve resolution R09-2023-398 for a 
alcoholic beverage permit variance for Moontower pizza, second by Council Member Scott 
Gilbreath, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 
6-0. 
 

9. Discuss and consider canceling the Regular scheduled meeting of the Crowley City 
Council for October 5, 2023 due to lack of quorum. 
 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath made the motion to cancel the October 5, 2023 council 
meeting due to a lack of quorum; second by Council Member Jerry Beck, council voted 
unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

10. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance No 09-2023-506, amending Appendix A, 
Schedule of Rates, Fees, and Charges, Section (32) Public Records Charges, by 
increasing notary service fees and deleting obsolete or duplicated fees. 
 
Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to approve Ordinance 09-2023-506 second by Council 
Member Jerry Beck, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0.   
 

ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS  
Reports/appointments or reappointments. 
1. Reports: 

None 
 

2. Appointments/Reappointments: 
None. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hirth asked if there were any citizens or visitors wishing to speak.   
 
Mr Daniel Bennett from White Settlement stepped up and requested council support in voting for a new 
candidate for the Tarrant Appraisal Districts Board. 
 
ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hirth then asked if there were any community interest items.   
 
As there was no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Jim Hirth adjourned the meeting at 7:46 p.m. 
 
          ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Billy Davis, Mayor     Carol C. Konhauser, City Secretary 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 26, 2023  Page | 1 of 2 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL SESSION HELD SEPTEMBER 26, 2023. The City 
Council of the City of Crowley, Texas met in a Special Called Session on Tuesday, September 26, 2023, at 
6:00 pm in the City Council Chambers, 201 East Main Street, Crowley City Hall, Crowley, Texas. 
 
Present were  Mayor Billy P. Davis 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Johnny Shotwell, City Council Place 1 
 Council Member Jerry Beck, City Council Place 2 
 Council Member Jesse Johnson, City Council Place 3 
 Council Member Jim Hirth, City Council Place 4 
 Vacant, City Council Place 5 
 Council Member Scott Gilbreath, City Council Place 6 
 

City staff included:   City Manager Robert Loftin 
 Deputy City Mngr/Finance Director, Lori Watson 
 City Secretary, Carol Konhauser 
   

Absent: None 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
Mayor Billy Davis called the Session to order at 6:00 p.m.  City Secretary Carol Konhauser called roll and 
noted a quorum was present. 
 
CITY BUSINESS 

1. Conduct the Official Canvass of the Election Returns for the Special Election held on 
September 23, 2023, in the City of Crowley, Texas, for the purpose of electing Council 
Member to place 5 for the remainder of the unexpired term ending May 2026. 
 

Mayor Billy Davis received the election envelope and compared the results on the Tally Sheet to the 
Election Return, then read the election return totals.  The totals were read as follows: 
 
TARRANT COUNTY 

City Council Place 5 
Early 
Voting 

Election 
Day 

Provisional 
Ballots Added 

Total 
Votes 

Matt Foster 39 60 0 99 
Lezo "Lee" Foley 18 9 0 27 
Under Votes 0 0 0 0 
Over Votes 0 0 0 0 
Total Votes 57 69 0 126 

 
JOHNSON COUNTY 

City Council Place 5 
Early 
Voting 

Election 
Day 

Provisional 
Ballots Added 

Total 
Votes 

Matt Foster 0 0 0 0 
Lezo "Lee" Foley 0 0 0 0 
Under Votes 0 0 0 0 
Over Votes 0 0 0 0 
Total Votes 0 0 0 0 

 
 
Mayor Davis announced Matt Foster was elected to Place 5.  
 
There were no objections to the official election return 
 
City Secretary Carol Konhauser administered the Statement of Office and Oath to the newest 
council member, Council Member Matt Foster.  
 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 26, 2023  Page | 2 of 2 

 
 

2. Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution R09-2023-400, a resolution of the City Council 
of the City of Crowley, Texas, canvassing and declaring the results of the September 23, 2023 
Special Election for the purpose of electing a City Council Member to Place 5 for the 
remainder of the term ending May 2026; and Mayor Davis to issue the Certificate of Election. 
 
Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to adopt Resolution R09-2023-400, second by 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. 
Motion carried 6-0. 

 
As there was no further business, Mayor Billy Davis adjourned the meeting at 6:14 p.m. 
 
          ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Billy Davis, Mayor     Carol C. Konhauser, City Secretary 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Carol Konhauser 
City Secretary MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: V-2 

SUBJECT: Consider approving an Interlocal Agreement for administrative cost funding for 
Section 5310 Program between the Fort Worth Transportation Authority and 
The City of Crowley, Texas, FY 2023-24 and authorizing the Mayor to execute 
said Agreement. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec CCK Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

The Fort Worth Transportation Authority is a federal grantee of the Federal Transit Administration 
which provides funding to States under Section 5310 of Title 49 of the United States Code.  This is an 
annual Interlocal Agreement with the Fort Worth Transportation Authority to provide door-to-door 
paratransit services for elderly and persons with disabilities within Tarrant County who do not have 
transportation service nor is a member of a transportation authority.  The City of Crowley will contribute 
$1,607.00 towards the administrative costs of the Section 5310 Services for FY2023-24.  Through this 
service, transportation would be provided for a variety of purposes such as medical appointments, 
shopping, recreation, school, or work.  Qualifying residents would pay $2.50 for a one-way trip.  For 
the 2023-2024 year, the City of Crowley will be guaranteed transportation on Thursdays of each week. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

Contributing cost of $1,607.00 budgeted annually, there was no increase for this year. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Interlocal Agreement for Section 5310 Program 
 



Interlocal -Tarrant County Transportation Services Section 5310 program- City of Crowley and FWTA   
Page  1 

                                                                                      FWTA Interlocal Agreement No.  _______    
                                                                  City Contract No. _______ 

 
 

 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT   
FOR ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS FUNDING FOR  

SECTION 5310 PROGRAM 
BETWEEN  

THE FORT WORTH TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
AND  

THE CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS 
 
 

 The Fort Worth Transportation Authority (“Trinity Metro”) and the City of Crowley, 
Texas (“City”) are both local governmental entities as that term is used in Chapter 791, Interlocal 
Cooperation Contracts, V.T.C.A., Government Code.  They shall sometimes be referred to 
collectively as the “Parties”.   
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Crowley desires to provide door-to-door paratransit services for 
elderly and persons with disabilities within Tarrant County and does not have a transportation 
service nor is it a member of a transportation authority; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Trinity Metro is a federal grantee of the Federal Transit Administration and 
the Federal Transit Administration provides funding to States under Section 5310 of Title 49 of 
the United States Code, and the goal of the Section 5310 program is to provide transportation for 
elderly and disabled persons residing in cities that do not have public transportation available to 
them; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) asked Trinity Metro to 
develop and implement a Section 5310 Tarrant County Transportation Services (TCTS) program 
for otherwise underserved communities in Tarrant county; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Trinity Metro has been awarded the grant for this area and the City of 
Crowley is contributing a total of $1,607.00 towards the administrative costs of the Section 5310 
service (TCTS) for the period from October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024; and  
  
 WHEREAS, the monies will support a portion of administrative costs for the 
transportation services to the described peoples during a 12-month period;   
  



Interlocal -Tarrant County Transportation Services Section 5310 program- City of Crowley and FWTA   
Page  2 

 
Now, therefore, the parties pursuant to City of Crowley action and Trinity Metro action, 

agree as follows: 
 
1. This program is called Tarrant County Transportation Services (TCTS). This 

transportation is provided for a variety of purposes such as medical appointments, 
shopping, recreation, school or work.  The City of Crowley will be allocated one day 
(Thursday), each week as their primary designated day for transportation.  On that day, 
all available vehicles will be provided for service to qualified Crowley residents.  On the 
remaining days of the week, rides are available subject to the priority requests from other 
cities on a first-come basis. 

 
2. Each party represents to the other that the delegated costs of the project under the 

Agreement, as well as any payments made by it pursuant to this Agreement, will be made 
from current revenues and/or specified grant funds.  Further, each Party warrants and 
represents to the other party that each Party has been authorized by its respective 
governing body to do so.  Each party further represents and warrants to the other Party 
that any renewal of, deletion, or change to this Agreement will be in writing and 
authorized by its respective governing body. 

 
3. Trinity Metro will administer transportation services to the citizens of the City of 

Crowley under the program known as Tarrant County Transportation Services from 
October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024. 

 
4. Trinity Metro will administer demand responsive transportation services for the seniors 

and persons with disabilities of Crowley according to the federal requirements of the 
Section 5310 grant and according to the relevant State of Texas statutes. 

 
5. The City of Crowley will pay the authorized amounts to Trinity Metro within 30 days of 

receipt of invoice.  The payment will be for the period from October 1, 2023 through 
September 30, 2024. 

 
6. Trinity Metro will provide access upon request to the Section 5310 records to the City of 

Crowley. 
 
7. Parties will comply with all applicable State of Texas and federal statutes and regulations 

as required by their status as a federal grantee and transit authority of the State of Texas, 
and federal grantee and municipality of the State of Texas, respectively. 

 
8. The term of this agreement will begin October 1, 2023 and end September 30, 2024. 
 
9. The City of Crowley will be considered a participating community and the qualifying 

residents of Crowley will be entitled to ride TCTS for a one-way trip fare of $2.50. 
 



Interlocal - Tarrant County Transportation Services Section 5310 program- City of Crowley and FWTA 
Page 3 

 
 
 

 
CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS FORT WORTH TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY: 
 
 
By: __________________________    By: _____________________________ 
Mayor              Richard Andreski 
                    President & CEO 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
 
 
 
______________________    
City Attorney      
City of Crowley, Texas         



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

V-PRESENTER: Carol Konhauser 
City Secretary MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: VII-1 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approving the City Manager or designee to finalize 
negotiations and execute an agreement with Johnson Construction Services for 
Construction Manager at Risk services associated with the remodel project of 
the City Hall Fire Station. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec CCK Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

In July, council approved hiring Magee Architects to conduct a comprehensive remodel design of the 
City Hall fire station to include public restrooms for the Plaza.  Staff and Magee have worked on design 
plans, and due to the scope of work and time constraints, believe the Construction Manager at Risk is 
the best delivery method.  In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 2269, the city is 
authorized to utilize an alternative method other than competitive bidding.   
 
An RFP for a construction manager at risk was advertised and two applications were received.  Magee 
reviewed the applications and meet with staff to make recommendations.  After consideration, Magee 
project managers and City Staff selected Johnson Construction Services to provide construction 
manager at risk services.   
 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Recommend approval of the selection of Johnson Construction Services 

FISCAL INFORMATION:  

The cost for CMAR services is $237,900.00 based on estimated project cost of $1,095,000.00 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Johnson Construction Services Application 
2.  Bid Tabulation 

 





















































































 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Rachel Roberts MEETING 
DATE: Oct. 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development AGENDA ITEM: VII-2 

SUBJECT: Discuss and authorize a new Interlocal Agreement with Tarrant County Public 
Health for food service and swimming pool inspections 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev RR PW  
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  EDC: 

  
City 

Attorney RA PD  FD  CM/ACM JT 

BACKGROUND:  

Crowley has an interlocal agreement with Tarrant County Public Health for food establishment 
inspections and commercial (public and semi-public) swimming pool inspections. The interlocal 
agreements we have with TCPH for these inspections need to be updated, as Tarrant County has updated 
the regulations they work under as well as their fee schedule. The city’s food inspections interlocal was 
last approved in 1996, and the pool inspections agreement was approved in 2010.  
 
As part of updating the interlocal agreement, the city must adopt the health rules in the Texas 
Administrative Code and the Texas Health and Safety Code. We will bring an ordinance to Council at 
the next meeting that adopts the regulations as stated in the agreement with Tarrant County 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommend approval. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

There are no fees to the city for these services (fees are charged by TCPH directly the customer), so 
there will be no change on our side from that perspective. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Interlocal agreement with Tarrant County Public Health 
 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
      § 
COUNTY OF TARRANT   § 
 
This Interlocal Agreement is between TARRANT COUNTY (“COUNTY”), and the CITY 
OF ______________________________ (“City”). 
  
WHEREAS, CITY is requesting the COUNTY’s assistance in providing 
   
 □ Food establishment inspection program services 
 □ Public swimming pool and spa inspection program services 
 x Both Food establishment and Public swimming pool and spa inspection       
     program services 
 
WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act contained in Chapter 791 of the Texas 
Government Code provides legal authority for the Parties to enter into this Agreement. 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of the COUNTY finds this Agreement service a 
public purpose. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the COUNTY and CITY agree as follows: 

 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
1. COUNTY RESPONSIBILITY 

The COUNTY shall provide 
Food establishment inspection program services: 

• Provide services, through Tarrant County Public Health, to all public food 
establishment located within the corporate limits of the CITY; 

• Plan review and conduct Health opening approval inspection, routine 
inspection, follow-up inspections, complaint investigations; 

• Provide certification of establishment for issuance of health permits; 
• Notify the CITY of violations of the current rules or rules as amended by 

the Executive Commissioner of Health and Human Services 
Commission found in 25 Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 228, 
regarding the regulation of food establishments; 

• Provide appropriate signs to be posted at public food establishment that 
do not meet the required standards; 

• Document program activities within the CITY via periodic reports; 
• Collect fees from the inspected establishment; 
• Inform CITY, in writing, of any fee schedule changes immediately 

following Tarrant County Commissioner’s Court approval; and 
• When required by law, verify food establishment manager training and 

food handler training and certifications. 



 
For Public swimming pool and spa inspection program services: 

• Provide services, through Tarrant County Public Health, to all public and 
semi-public swimming pools, spas, and interactive water features 
located within the corporate limits of the CITY; 

• Plan review and conduct Health opening approval inspection, routine 
inspection, follow-up inspections, complaint investigations; 

• Provide certification of establishment for issuance of health permits; 
• Notify CITY of violations of current rules or rules as amended by the 

Executive Commissioner of the Health and Human Services 
Commission for Standards for Public Pools and Spas (Texas 
Administrative Code, Title 25, Chapter 265, Subchapter L), Public 
Interactive Water Features and Fountains (Texas Administrative Code, 
Title 25, Chapter 265, Subchapter M) and Pool Yard Enclosures (Texas 
Health and Safety Code Chapter 757); 

• Provide appropriate signs to be posted at public swimming pool and spa 
establishment that do not meet the required standards; 

• Document program activities within the CITY via periodic reports; 
• Collect fees from the inspected establishment; 
• Inform CITY, in writing, of any fee schedule changes immediately 

following Tarrant County Commissioner’s Court approval; and 
• When require by law, verify pool operator training certification. 

 
2. CITY RESPONSIBILITY 

For Food establishment inspection program services 
• Adopt the current rules or rules as amended by the Executive 

Commissioner of the Health and Human Services Commission found in 
25 Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 228, regarding the regulation of 
food establishments; 

• Designate the Medical Director of Tarrant County Public Health 
Department as the Health Authority for the purposes of this agreement; 

• Require all food establishments within the corporate limits of the CITY 
to maintain a valid health permit; 

• Agree all health permits fees are enforceable within thirty (30) days of 
approval of the Tarrant County Commissioner’s Court; 

• Revise CITY code/ordinance, where applicable, to adopt changes to the 
fees; 

• Inform Tarrant County Public Health Manager for Environmental Health 
when code/ordinance are modified and when the updates are complete; 

• Assign Tarrant County Public Health authority to collect health permit 
fees from permit applicants; and 

• When required by law, require facilities to have certified food mangers 
and food handlers. 

 
 



 
For Public swimming pool and spa inspection program services 

• Adopt the current Texas Health and Safety Code, Title 5, Subtitle A, 
Chapter(s) 341.064, 341.0645 and 341.0695; Texas Health and Safety 
Code, Title 1, Chapter 1 Section 1.005, and Texas Health and Safety 
Code, Tile 9, Subtitle A, Chapter 757; 

• Adopt the current rules or rules as amended by the Executive 
Commissioner of the Health and Human Services Commission for 
Standards for Public Pools and Spas (Texas Administrative Code, Title 
25, Chapter 265, Subchapter L), Public Interactive Water Features and 
Fountains (Texas Administrative Code, Title 25, Chapter 265, 
Subchapter M) and Pool Yard Enclosures (Texas Health and Safety 
Code Chapter 757); 

• Designate the Medical Director of Tarrant County Public Health as the 
Health Authority for the purposes of this agreement; 

• Require all public and semi-public swimming pools/spas within the 
corporate limits of the CITY to maintain a valid health permit; 

• Agree all Health permit fees are enforceable within thirty (30) days of 
approval of the Tarrant County Commissioner’s court; 

• Revise CITY code/ordinance, where applicable, to adopt changes to the 
fees; 

• Inform Tarrant County Public Health Manager for Environmental Health 
when code/ordinance are modified and when the updates are complete; 

• Assign Tarrant County Public Health authority to collect health permit 
fees from permit applicants; 

• Be responsible for enforcement of the CITY’s ordinances; and 
• When required by law, require facilities to have certified pool/spa 

operators. 
 

3. CITY ENFORCEMENT 
If during an inspection of a food facility, pool or spa, Tarrant County Public 
Health Department personnel notices a violation of the CITY’s code, the Tarrant 
County Public Health Department shall notify the appropriate City official.  The 
CITY shall be responsible for the enforcement of the CITY’s health ordinances. 
The COUNTY shall make available for testimony COUNTY personnel whose 
testimony may be required to support such enforcement action in accordance 
with the procedures established by CITY MUNICPAL COURT for the 
appearance of law enforcement officers. 
 

4. NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITY 
This Agreement does not waive COUNTY rights under a legal theory of 
sovereign immunity. 
 

5. THIRD PARTY 
This Agreement shall not be interpreted to inure to the benefit of a third party 
not a party of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be interpreted to waive 



any statutory or common law defense, immunity, or any limitation of liability, 
responsibility or damage of any party to this Agreement, party’s agent or party’s 
employee, otherwise provided by law. 
 

6. EXCLUSION OF INCIDENTAL DAMAGES 
Independent of, severable from, and to be enforced independently of any other 
enforceable or unenforceable provision of this Agreement, NEITHER PARTY 
WILL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY NOR TO ANY PERSON CLAIMING 
INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL PUNITIVE, OR EXEMPLARY 
DAMANGES OF ANY KIND, including lost profits, loss of business, or other 
economic damage and further including injury to property, mental anguish, or 
emotional distress. 
 

7. JOINT VENTURE & AGENCY 
The relationship between the parties to this Agreement does not create a joint 
venture between the parties.  The Agreement does not appoint any party as 
agent for the other party. 
 

8. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 
This Agreement shall be interpreted under the laws of State of Texas.  The 
venue for any lawsuit arising out of this Agreement will be in the Fort Worth 
Division of the Northern District of Texas if the lawsuit arises in Federal Court 
or Tarrant County, Texas if the matter arises in State Court. 
 

9. ASSIGNMENT 
This Agreement shall not be assigned or transferred and that any attempt to 
assign or transfer this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations shall be null 
and void. 
 

10. SEVERABILITY 
If any court determines any provision in this Agreement is invalid, void, or 
unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full force 
and effect.  
 

11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
In providing the services required by the Agreement, CITY must observe and 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statues, ordinances, rules 
and regulations, including, without limitation, worker’s compensation laws, 
minimum and maximum salary and wage statutes and regulations, and non-
discrimination laws and regulations.  CITY shall be responsible for ensuring its 
compliance with any laws and regulations applicable to its business, including 
maintaining any necessary licenses and permits.  
 

12. EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Agreement become effective when signed by the last party whose signing 
makes the Agreement fully executed.  



 
13. TERM 

This Agreement shall begin upon the approval of both the City Council and the 
Tarrant County Commissioner’s Court and shall continue until canceled by 
either party with a minimum of 90 days written notice to the other party.  
 

14. AMENDMENT 
No amendment, modification or alternation of the terms of this Agreement shall 
be binding unless the same is in writing and signed by both parties. 
 

15. TERMINATION 
Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause by providing written 
notice of intent to terminate at least ninety (90) days prior to the intended date 
of termination.  Written notice of intent to terminate shall be sent by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, to the other party at its address: 
 
Addresses: 
 
Tarrant County Public Health    CITY:________________ 
Attn: Environmental Health Division Manger  Attn: _________________ 
1101 S. Main St.      Address:______________ 
Fort Worth, Texas 76104    _____________________ 

 
Executed this ________ day of ______________________, 20__. 
 
CITY of ________________                    STATE OF TEXAS 
                 COUNTY OF TARRANT 
 
By: _______________________               By: ______________________ 
Name:        Tim O’Hare 
Title:        County Judge 
 
Date:           Date:   
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:           APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: __________________________                By:____________________________ 
Name:             Name: 
Title:         Title: 
Date:        Date:   

ATTEST:   ATTEST: 

By: _______________________       By:___________________________ 
Name:             Name: 
Title:         Title: 
Date:        Date: 



 

 

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

 

EH FEE SCHEDULE 

CONSUMER HEALTH Special Fund: F223 
 

Annual Public Pool & Spa permit fee $ 315.00  
Pool Plan Review & Opening Inspection** $ 200.00  
Contractual Inspections - School Districts (avg $150 per site visit)** $ 150.00  
Food Service Permit: less than 500 sq. ft. $ 400.00  
Food Service Permit: >500 =<less than 1500 sq. ft. $ 500.00  
Food Service Permit: >1500 =<less than 3000 sq. ft. $ 600.00  
Food Service Permit: >3000=<less than 6000 sq. ft. $ 700.00  
Food Service Permit: >6000 sq. ft. or above $ 800.00  
Food Service Permit: Adjunct Food Service $ 500.00  
Food Service Permit: Adjunct Food Store - <less than 5000 sq. ft. $ 500.00  
Food Service Permit: Adjunct Food Store - >5000 sq. ft. or above $ 600.00  
Food Service Permit: Catering Operation $ 700.00  
Food Service Permit: Child Care Facility $ 500.00  
Food Service Permit: School Cafeteria w/ Contract $ 250.00  
Food Service Permit: Commissary (non-prep) $ 400.00  
Food Service Permit: Commissary (prep.) $ 600.00  
Food Service Permit: Food Court $ 600.00  
Food Service Permit: Mobile Unit (prepackaged) $ 400.00  
Food Service Permit: Mobile Unit (preparation of food) $ 600.00  
Food Service Permit: Mobile Unit (push cart) $ 600.00  
Farmers Market $ 100.00  
Food Store: <less than 5000 sq. ft. $ 600.00  
Food Store: >5000 sq. ft. or above $ 800.00  
Food Late Fee: 1-30 days 10% of fee  
Food Late Fee: 31-60 days 20% of fee  
Food Late Fee: 61-90 days 30% of fee  
Plan Review: >1500 sq. ft. or above $ 200.00  
Plan Review: <1500 sq. ft. or below $ 100.00  
Temporary Food Establishment 1-5 Days** $ 35.00  
Temporary Food Establishment 6-14 Days $ 70.00  
Required/Requested Reinspection $ 75.00  

MISCELLANEOUS - CONSUMER/ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH No Fee Changes, Fund: PH-T04 
 

Duplicate Permits** $ 15.00 
 

**indicates no fee increase 

 

 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

PRESENTER: Rachel Roberts MEETING DATE: Oct. 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development AGENDA ITEM: VII-3 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approving Ordinance 10-2023-509, an ordinance adjusting 
the boundary between the City of Crowley and the City of Fort Worth at 
Crowley Rd and the future McPherson Blvd extension 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev RR PW MR 
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  EDC: 

  
City 

Attorney RA PD  FD  Asst City 
Mgr: JT 

BACKGROUND:  

In 2018, the City of Crowley approved a boundary adjustment with the City of Fort Worth moving the 
future McPherson roadway into the city limits of Fort Worth as part of the Hunters Ridge development 
(the Crowley city limits were expanded slightly to the east as part of this same adjustment). Recently, 
the developer for Hunters Ridge has been coordinating with Fort Worth and TxDOT regarding the 
construction of McPherson and its connection to Crowley Rd. As part of that work, the developer’s 
engineers realized that the 2018 boundary adjustment did not include the intersection with Crowley Rd. 
Thus while the roadway is within Fort Worth, the intersection with Crowley Rd is within the Crowley 
city limits.  
 
For ease of coordinating the construction, the developer, Bloomfield Homes, is requesting Crowley and 
Fort Worth approve a boundary adjustment that would move the intersection into Fort Worth. Crowley 
Planning and Public Works support the adjustment. The remainder of the McPherson roadway will be 
in Fort Worth, and it makes sense for the intersection to be in Fort Worth, as well, to eliminate any 
future confusion about traffic enforcement and emergency response. 
 
The City of Fort Worth have approved the adjustment at the staff level, and both their city attorney and 
the Crowley city attorney have reviewed the draft ordinance approving the adjustment. If Crowley City 
Council approves the adjustment, the ordinance will be sent to the City of Fort Worth City Council for 
approval. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommend approval. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

This is a TxDOT roadway, so the City of Crowley would not have responsibility for any traffic signals 
that may be installed in the future. 

ATTACHMENTS:  



Page 2 of 2 

Ordinance approving the boundary adjustment 
Ordinance exhibits 

 



Page 1 of 5 
 
 

CITY OF CROWLEY ORDINANCE NO. 10-2023-509 
CITY OF FORT WORTH ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
JOINT ORDINANCE AND BOUNDARY AGREEMENT 

 
  
 WHEREAS, the City of Fort Worth and the City of Crowley have received a request by 
Bloomfield Homes for a boundary adjustment to allow a future intersection traffic signal to be within 
the Fort Worth city limits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Fort Worth (hereinafter called “FORT WORTH”) is a home-rule city 
located in Tarrant, Wise, Parker, Johnson and Denton Counties; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Crowley (hereinafter called “CROWLEY”) is a home-rule city located 
in Tarrant and Johnson Counties; and 
  
 WHEREAS, FORT WORTH and CROWLEY share a common boundary; and 
   
 WHEREAS, FORT WORTH and CROWLEY now desire to adjust the boundary between the 
two cities to promote orderly development to ensure public safety and effective delivery of municipal 
services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.015 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes adjacent 
municipalities to make mutually agreeable changes to their boundaries that are less than 1,000 feet 
in width; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.142 of the Texas Local Government Code allows a home-rule 
municipality to disannex areas in the municipality in accordance with the rules as may be provided 
by its City Charter; 
  
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND MUTUALLY AGREED BY THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CROWLEY: 
 

SECTION 1 
 

Pursuant to Section 43.015 of the Texas Local Government Code, FORT WORTH and 
CROWLEY hereby agree that the boundary between the cities will be adjusted as set out herein so 
that 0.301-acres of land located in the J. Gill Survey Abstract Number 568 and the H. Walker Survey 
Abstract Number 1622 in the CROWLEY city limits, as described and shown in Exhibit “A”, and with 
a width of less than 1,000 feet, will be located in the city limits of FORT WORTH.  In accordance 
with this Joint Ordinance and Boundary Agreement, CROWLEY hereby relinquishes the 0.301 acres 
described in Exhibit “A” to FORT WORTH and disannexes and discontinues such property as part 
of CROWLEY city limits.  In accordance with the terms of this Joint Ordinance and Boundary 
Agreement, FORT WORTH accepts and annexes 0.301 acres into its city limits as reflected in Exhibit 
“A” attached and incorporated herein. 
 



Page 2 of 5 
 
 

SECTION 2 
 
 This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the ordinances of the City of Crowley 
and the City of Fort Worth, except where the provisions of this ordinance are in direct conflict with 
the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the conflicting provisions of such ordinances are 
hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION 3 
 
 It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Councils of FORT WORTH and CROWLEY 
that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this ordinance are severable, and 
if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance shall be declared 
unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, 
and sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted without the incorporation 
in this ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

 
SECTION 4 

 
The City of Crowley and the City of Fort Worth do hereby covenant and agree to protect, preserve 
and defend the herein described boundary adjustment. 
 

 
SECTION 5 

 
 The City of Crowley and the City of Fort Worth agree and ordain that the adoption by both 
cities of this Joint Ordinance and Boundary Agreement, and the boundary change resulting from this 
Agreement do not mitigate, diminish or lessen in any way the rights that either party may have, at 
law or in equity, to challenge or contest any other annexations, attempted annexations or 
extraterritorial jurisdiction claims made by the other party. 
 

SECTION 6 
 
 This joint ordinance and boundary agreement shall become effective and shall become a 
binding agreement upon the City of Fort Worth and the City of Crowley by the adoption of same in 
regular open city council meetings of the City of Crowley and the City of Fort Worth. 
 

SECTION 7 

 
 The Mayor of each city shall execute this Joint Ordinance and Boundary Agreement, upon 
adoption by both cities, in duplicate originals. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Fort Worth on this ___ day of 
___________________, 2023. 



Page 3 of 5 
 
 

 
 
 

__________________________ 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

__________________________ 
City Secretary 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
 
__________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY  
  
ATTEST  
 
 
________________________________  
CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
  



Page 4 of 5 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Crowley on this ___ day of 
___________________, 2023. 
 
 
 

 __________________________ 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 

__________________________ 
City Secretary 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY     
 
 
 
_______________________________  
CITY ATTORNEY  
  
ATTEST  
 
 
________________________________  
CITY SECRETARY 
  



Page 5 of 5 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 



C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FO

R
T 

W
O

R
TH

H. WALKER SURVEY

ABSTRACT No. 1622

A
-1

62
2

A
-5

68
N

O
R

T
H

 C
R

O
W

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
 -

 F
.M

. 
7
3
1

(V
A

RI
A

BL
E 

W
ID

TH
 R

.O
.W

.)
TRACT 1, PARCEL A

BLOOMFIELD HOMES, L.P.
D220347026
O.P.R.T.C.T.

(REMAINDER PORTION)
TRACT 1, PARCEL B

BLOOMFIELD HOMES, L.P.
 D220347026
O.P.R.T.C.T.

J. GILL  SURVEY

ABSTRACT No. 568

TRACT 1, PARCEL D
BLOOMFIELD HOMES, L.P.

D220347026
O.P.R.T.C.T.

1"R.F.

CITY OF FORT WORTH
CITY OF CROWLEY

EXHIBT "A"
CROWLEY ORD. 12-2018-355

FORT WORTH ORD. 23520-12-2018
JOINT ORDINANCE AND
BOUNDARY AGREEMENT
D219004375, O.P.R.T.C.T.

S 00°11'13" E
110.00'

S 89°35'15" W
119.05'

11
0.

00
'

N
 0

0°
10

'1
3"

 W

HARBISON-FISCHER
MANUFACTURING Co.
VOL. 8138, PG. 1134

D.R.T.C.T.

CITY OF CROWLEY

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
C

R
O

W
LE

Y

CITY OF FORT WORTH

N 89°35'15" E
119.02'

PROPOSED
ANNEXATION

0.301 AC.

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FO

R
T 

W
O

R
TH

FO
R

T 
W

O
R

TH
 E

TJ
CITY OF CROWLEY

FORT WORTH ETJ

PROPOSED
McPHERSON
BOULEVARD

N 89°35'15" E

Scale:

Date:
Job No.:

Checked:
Drafted:

E:
\1

08
05

 - 
D

ee
r C

re
ek

 M
ea

d
ow

\C
O

G
O

\A
N

N
EX

\F
M

73
1 

A
N

N
EX

A
TIO

N
.d

w
g

600

SCALE IN FEET

Sheet

of10805
5/10/2023

1" = 60'

1

1J.S.B.
T.J.M.

"EXHIBIT A"

Engineering & Surveying
2559 SW Grapevine Pkwy, Grapevine, Texas 76051

817-329-4373
TxEng Firm # F-2944 | TxSurv Firm # 10021700

PRELIMINARY, this
document shall not
be recorded for any
purpose and shall not
be used or viewed or
relied upon as a final
survey document.
Issued for review
5/10/2023 3:31 PM

NOTE:
Bearings are referenced to Texas State Plane Coordinate
System, North Central Zone (4202), North American Datum
of 1983 as derived from GPS observation.



Scale:

Date:
Job No.:

Checked:
Drafted:

E:
\1

08
05

 - 
D

ee
r C

re
ek

 M
ea

d
ow

\C
O

G
O

\A
N

N
EX

\F
M

73
1 

A
N

N
EX

A
TIO

N
.d

w
g

Sheet

of10805
7/31/2023

NONE

1

2J.S.B.
T.J.M.

"EXHIBIT A"

Engineering & Surveying
2559 SW Grapevine Pkwy, Grapevine, Texas 76051

817-329-4373
TxEng Firm # F-2944 | TxSurv Firm # 10021700

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

STATE OF TEXAS:
COUNTY OF TARRANT:

BEING a tract of land situated in the H. Walker Survey, Abstract No. 1622 and the J. Gill Survey, Abstract No.
568, City of Crowley, Tarrant County, Texas, being a portion of North Crowley Road - F.M. 731, and being more
particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 1” rebar found in the east line of said North Crowley Road (FM 731 - variable width R.O.W.) at
the southwest corner of Tract 1, Parcel D and the most westerly northwest corner of TRACT 1, PARCEL A as
described in deed to Bloomfield Homes, L.P., recorded in D220347026, Official Public Records, Tarrant County,
Texas;

THENCE South 00 degrees 11 minutes 13 seconds East, along the east line of said North Crowley Road and the
west line of said Bloomfield TRACT 1, PARCEL A, a distance of 110.00 feet to the most westerly southwest corner
of said Bloomfield TRACT 1, PARCEL A and the northwest corner of TRACT 1, PARCEL B as described in said
Bloomfield deed;

THENCE South 89 degrees 35 minutes 15 seconds West, across said North Crowley Road, a distance of 119.13
feet to a point in the west line of said North Crowley Road and the east line of a tract of land as described in
deed to Harbison-Fischer, recorded in Volume 8138, Page 1134, Deed Records, Tarrant County, Texas, from
which a bent 1/2” rebar found at the southeast corner of said Harbison-Fischer tract bears South 00 degrees 11
minutes 50 seconds East, 550.15 feet;

THENCE North 00 degrees 11 minutes 50 seconds West, along the west line of said North Crowley Road and the
east line of said Harbison-Fischer tract, a distance of 110.00 feet to the northwest corner of the herein
described tract;

THENCE North 89 degrees 35 minutes 15 seconds East, departing the east line of said Harbison-Fischer tract,
across said North Crowley Road, a distance of 119.15 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 13,105
square feet or 0.301 acre of land.

NOTE:
Bearings are referenced to Texas State Plane Coordinate System, North Central Zone (4202), North American
Datum of 1983 as derived from GPS observation.

4914
JOEL S. BARTON

ST

ATE  OF  TEXAS

LAND  SURV EYOR

R
EG IS T ERED

P
RO FES S IONA

L

7/31/2023



C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FO

R
T 

W
O

R
TH

H. WALKER SURVEY

ABSTRACT No. 1622

A
-1

62
2

A
-5

68
N

O
R

T
H

 C
R

O
W

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
 -

 F
.M

. 
7
3
1

(V
A

RI
A

BL
E 

W
ID

TH
 R

.O
.W

.)
TRACT 1, PARCEL A

BLOOMFIELD HOMES, L.P.
D220347026
O.P.R.T.C.T.

TRACT 1, PARCEL B
BLOOMFIELD HOMES, L.P.

 D220347026
O.P.R.T.C.T.

J. GILL  SURVEY

ABSTRACT No. 568

TRACT 1, PARCEL D
BLOOMFIELD HOMES, L.P.

D220347026
O.P.R.T.C.T.

1"R.F.

CITY OF FORT WORTH
CITY OF CROWLEY

EXHIBT "A"
CROWLEY ORD. 12-2018-355

FORT WORTH ORD. 23520-12-2018
JOINT ORDINANCE AND
BOUNDARY AGREEMENT
D219004375, O.P.R.T.C.T.

S 00°11'13" E
110.00'

S 89°35'15" W
119.13'

11
0.

00
'

N
 0

0°
11

'5
0"

 W

HARBISON-FISCHER
MANUFACTURING Co.
VOL. 8138, PG. 1134

D.R.T.C.T.

CITY OF CROWLEY

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
C

R
O

W
LE

Y

CITY OF FORT WORTH

N 89°35'15" E
119.15'

PROPOSED
ANNEXATION

0.301 AC.

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FO

R
T 

W
O

R
TH

FO
R

T 
W

O
R

TH
 E

TJ
CITY OF CROWLEY

FORT WORTH ETJ

PROPOSED
McPHERSON
BOULEVARD

N 89°35'15" E

Scale:

Date:
Job No.:

Checked:
Drafted:

E:
\1

08
05

 - 
D

ee
r C

re
ek

 M
ea

d
ow

\C
O

G
O

\A
N

N
EX

\F
M

73
1 

A
N

N
EX

A
TIO

N
.d

w
g

600

SCALE IN FEET

Sheet

of10805
7/31/2023

1" = 60'

2

2J.S.B.
T.J.M.

"EXHIBIT A"

Engineering & Surveying
2559 SW Grapevine Pkwy, Grapevine, Texas 76051

817-329-4373
TxEng Firm # F-2944 | TxSurv Firm # 10021700

4914
JOEL S. BARTON

ST

ATE  OF  TEXAS

LAND  SURV EYOR

R
EG IS T ERED

P
RO FES S IONA

L

7/31/2023

NOTE:
Bearings are referenced to Texas State Plane Coordinate
System, North Central Zone (4202), North American Datum
of 1983 as derived from GPS observation.



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Rachel Roberts MEETING DATE: Oct. 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development AGENDA ITEM: VII-4 

SUBJECT: Authorize the City Manager or designee to execute a contract with SAFEbuilt 
for backup building inspection and plan review services 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev RR PW  
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  EDC: 

  

City 
Attorney RA PD  FD  CM/ACM RL / 

JT 
BACKGROUND:  

With the hiring of new building official Suzy Hicks, Crowley terminated its contract with Safebuilt for 
primary building inspection and plan review services. Staff are now requesting the Council approve a 
new contract to provide support on an as-needed basis for times when Ms. Hicks is on vacation, out 
sick, or out for training. The City is also exploring the option of a cooperative agreement with Burleson, 
but it is too early in our discussions with them to determine whether an agreement will ultimately be 
feasible. In the meantime, a contract with Safebuilt would help limit disruptions to city inspection 
services.  

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

The City would pay fees shown in the attached ordinance only when Safebuilt’s services are used. There 
is no base rate for simply having the contract with Safebuilt, so there is cost to the city unless/until we 
need outside services. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

• Contract with Safebuilt 
 



Page 1 of 11 
 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS 

AND SAFEbuilt TEXAS, LLC  
 
This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between City of Crowley, 
Texas, (“Municipality”) and SAFEbuilt Texas, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of SAFEbuilt, LLC, (“Consultant”).  
Municipality and Consultant shall be jointly referred to as “Parties”.  
 
RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, Municipality is seeking a consultant to perform the services listed in Exhibit A – List of Services 
and Fee Schedule, (“Services”); and  

 

WHEREAS, Consultant is ready, willing, and able to perform Services. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, 
Municipality and Consultant agree as follows: 
 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Consultant will perform Services in accordance with construction codes, amendments and ordinances adopted 
by the elected body of Municipality, state laws and regulations that are applicable to the Services provided 
under this Agreement.  The qualified professionals employed by Consultant will maintain current 
certifications, certificates, licenses as required for Services that they provide to Municipality.  Consultant is 
not obligated to perform services beyond what is contemplated by this Agreement. 
 

Unless otherwise provided in Exhibit B, Consultant shall provide the Services using hardware and Consultant’s 
standard software package.  In the event that Municipality requires that Consultant utilize hardware or 
software specified by or provided by Municipality, Municipality shall provide the information specified in 
Exhibit B.  Consultant shall use reasonable commercial efforts to comply with the requirements of Exhibit B 
and Municipality, at its sole expense, shall provide such technical support, equipment or other facilities as 
Consultant may reasonably request to permit Consultant to comply with the requirements of Exhibit B. 
 

2. CHANGES TO SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Any changes to Services between Municipality and Consultant shall be made in writing that shall specifically 
designate changes in Service levels and compensation for Services.  Both Parties shall determine a mutually 
agreed upon solution to alter services levels and a transitional timeframe that is mutually beneficial to both 
Parties.  No changes shall be binding absent a written Agreement or Amendment executed by both Parties. 
 

3. FEE STRUCTURE  
In consideration of Consultant providing services, Municipality shall pay Consultant for Services performed in 
accordance with Exhibit A – List of Services and Fee Schedule.   
 

4. INVOICE & PAYMENT STRUCTURE 
Consultant will invoice Municipality, on a monthly basis and provide all necessary supporting documentation.  
All payments are due to Consultant within 30 days of Municipality’s receipt of Consultant’s invoice.  Payments 
owed to Consultant but not made within sixty (60) days of invoice date shall bear simple interest at the rate 
of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month.  If payment is not received within ninety (90) days of invoice 
date, Services will be discontinued until all invoices and interest are paid in full.  Municipality may request, 
and Consultant shall provide, additional information before approving the invoice. When additional 
information is requested Municipality will identify specific disputed item(s) and give specific reasons for any 
request. Undisputed portions of any invoice shall be due within 30 days of Consultants invoice date, if 
additional information is requested, Municipality will submit payment within thirty (30) days of resolution of 
the dispute.   



Page 2 of 11 
 

 

 
5. TERM  

This Agreement shall be effective on the latest date on which this Agreement is fully executed by both Parties.  
The initial term of this Agreement shall be twelve (12) months.  Agreement shall automatically renew for 
subsequent twelve (12) month terms until such time as either Party notifies the other of their desire to 
terminate this Agreement. 
 

6. TERMINATION 
Either Party may terminate this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice, 
with or without cause and with no penalty or additional cost beyond the rates stated in this Agreement.  In 
case of such termination, Consultant shall be entitled to receive payment for work completed up to and 
including the date of termination within thirty (30) days of the termination.   
 
All structures that have been permitted, a fee collected, and not yet expired at the time of termination may 
be completed through final inspection by Consultant if approved by Municipality.  Consultant’s obligation is 
met upon completion of final inspection or permit expiration, provided that the time period to reach such 
completion and finalization does not exceed sixty (60) days after termination date.  Alternately, Municipality 
may exercise the option to negotiate a refund for permits where a fee has been collected but inspections have 
not been completed.  The refund will be prorated according to percent of completed construction as 
determined by Consultant and mutually agreed upon by all Parties.  No refund will be given for completed 
work. 
 

7. FISCAL NON-APPROPRIATION CLAUSE 
Financial obligations of Municipality payable after the current fiscal year are contingent upon funds for that 
purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available in accordance with the rules, 
regulations, and resolutions of Municipality, and other applicable law.  Upon the failure to appropriate such 
funds, this Agreement shall be terminated. 
 

8. MUNICIPALITY OBLIGATIONS 
Municipality shall timely provide all data information, plans, specifications and other documentation 
reasonably required by Consultant to perform Services (Materials).  Municipality has the right to grant and 
hereby grants Consultant a fully paid up, non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use the Materials in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  
 

9. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
Consultant shall perform the Services using that degree of care, skill, and professionalism ordinarily exercised 
under similar circumstances by members of the same profession practicing or performing the substantially 
same or similar services.  Consultant represents to Municipality that Consultant retains employees that 
possess the skills, knowledge, and abilities to competently, timely, and professionally perform Services in 
accordance with this Agreement.   
 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
Consultant is an independent contractor, and, except as provided otherwise in this section, neither 
Consultant, nor any employee or agent thereof, shall be deemed for any reason to be an employee or agent 
of Municipality.  Municipality shall have no liability or responsibility for any direct payment of any salaries, 
wages, payroll taxes, or any and all other forms or types of compensation or benefits to any personnel 
performing services for Municipality under this Agreement. Consultant shall be solely responsible for all 
compensation, benefits, insurance and employment-related rights of any person providing Services hereunder 
during the course of or arising or accruing as a result of any employment, whether past or present, with 
Consultant.   
 



Page 3 of 11 
 

 

Consultant and Municipality agree that Consultant will provide similar service to other clients while under 
contract with Municipality and Municipality acknowledges that Consultant employees may provide similar 
services to multiple clients. Consultant shall at its sole discretion assign and reassign qualified employees, as 
determined by Consultant, to perform services for Municipality.  Municipality may request that a specific 
employee be assigned to or reassigned from work under this Agreement and Consultant shall consider that 
request when determining staffing.  Consultant shall determine all conditions of employment for its 
employees, including hours, wages, working conditions, promotion, discipline, hiring and 
discharge.  Consultant exclusively controls the manner, means and methods by which services are provided 
to Municipality, including attendance at meetings, and Consultant’s employees are not subject to the direction 
and control of Municipality.  Except where required by Municipality to use Municipality information 
technology equipment or when requested to perform the services from office space provided by the 
Municipality, Consultant employees shall perform the services using Consultant information technology 
equipment and from such locations as Consultant shall specify.  No Consultant employee shall be assigned a 
Municipal email address as their exclusive email address and any business cards or other IDs shall state that 
the person is an employee of Consultant or providing Services pursuant to a contractual agreement between 
Municipality and Consultant. 

It is the intention of the Parties that, to the greatest extent permitted by applicable law, Consultant shall be 
entitled to protection under the doctrines of governmental immunity and governmental contractor immunity, 
including limitations of liability, to the same extent as Municipality would be in the event that the services 
provided by Consultant were being provided by Municipality.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed a 
waiver of such protections. 
 

11. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACT  
Neither party shall assign all or part of its rights or obligations under this Agreement to another entity without 
the written approval of both Parties; consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Notwithstanding the 
preceding, Consultant may assign this Agreement in connection with the sale of all or substantially all of its 
assets or ownership interest, effective upon notice to Municipality, and may assign this Agreement to its 
parent, subsidiaries or sister companies (Affiliates) with notice to Municipality.  Consultant may subcontract 
any or all of the services to its Affiliates with notice to Municipality.  Consultant may subcontract any or all of 
the services to other third parties provided that Consultant gives Municipality prior written notice of the 
persons or entities with which Consultant has subcontracted.  Consultant remains responsible for any 
Affiliate’s or subcontractor’s performance or failure to perform.  Affiliates and subcontractors will be subject 
to the same performance criteria expected of Consultant.  Performance clauses will be included in agreements 
with all subcontractors to assure quality levels and agreed upon schedules are met. 
 

12. INDEMNIFICATION 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Municipality, its 
elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of Municipality, from 
and against any and all third-party claims, demands, suits, costs (including reasonable legal costs), expenses, 
and liabilities  (“Claims”) alleging personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and/or property damage, 
but only to the extent that any such Claims are caused by the negligence of Consultant or any officer, 
employee, representative, or agent of Consultant.  Consultant shall have no obligations under this Section to 
the extent that any Claim arises as a result of Consultants compliance with Municipal law, ordinances, rules, 
regulations, resolution, executive orders or other instructions received from Municipality.   
 
To the fullest extent permitted by law and without waiver of governmental immunity, Municipality shall 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its officers, employees, representatives, and agents, from 
and against any and all Claims alleging personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and/or property 
damage, but only to the extent that such Claims are caused by (a) the negligence of, or material breach of any 
obligation under this Agreement by, Municipality or any officer, employee, representative, or agent of 
Municipality or (b) Consultant’s compliance with Municipal law, ordinances, rules, regulations, resolutions, 



Page 4 of 11 
 

 

executive orders or other instructions received from Municipality.  If either Party becomes aware of any 
incident likely to give rise to a Claim under the above indemnities, it shall notify the other and both Parties 
shall cooperate fully in investigating the incident. 
 

13. LIMITS OF LIABILITY 
EXCEPT ONLY AS MAY BE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN, CONSULTANT EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL 
WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ERROR-FREE OPERATION, 
PERFORMANCE, ACCURACY, OR NON-INFRINGEMENT.  EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT ARISING FROM 
MUNICIPALITY’S PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS FOR SERVICES, IN NO EVENT SHALL CONSULTANT OR MUNICIPALITY 
BE LIABLE TO ONE ANOTHER FOR INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, RELIANCE, EXEMPLARY, OR 
SPECIAL DAMAGES INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS, LOST REVENUES, LOST 
DATA OR OTHER INFORMATION, OR LOST BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY, REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, 
WHETHER IN CONTRACT, INDEMNITY, NEGLIGENCE, WARRANTY, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT, EVEN IF ADVISED 
OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF 
ANY REMAINING REMEDY.  EXCEPT WITH RESPECT TO PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS FOR SERVICES, IN NO EVENT 
SHALL THE LIABILITY OF MUNICIPALITY OR CONSULTANT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FROM ANY CAUSE OF 
ACTION WHATSOEVER (REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT OR UNDER 
ANY OTHER LEGAL THEORY, AND WHETHER ARISING BY NEGLIGENCE, INTENTIONAL CONDUCT, OR 
OTHERWISE) EXCEED THE GREATER OF THE AMOUNT OF FEES PAID TO CONSULTANT PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT 
OR THE AVAILABLE LIMITS OF CONSULTANTS INSURANCE (SUCH LIMITS DEFINE MUNICIPAL MAXIMUM LIABILITY TO 
THE SAME EXTENT AS IF MUNICIPALITY HAD BEEN OBLIGATED TO PURCHASE THE POLICIES). 
 

14. INSURANCE 
A. Consultant shall procure and maintain and shall cause any subcontractor of Consultant to procure 

and maintain, the minimum insurance coverages listed below throughout the term of this 
Agreement.  Such coverages shall be procured and maintained with forms and insurers acceptable 
to Municipality.  In the case of any claims-made policy, the necessary retroactive dates and extended 
reporting periods shall be procured to maintain such continuous coverage. 

B. Worker's compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by applicable law for any employee 
engaged in the performance of work under this Agreement, and Employer's Liability insurance with 
minimum limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) bodily injury each accident, one million dollars 
($1,000,000) bodily injury by disease – policy limit, and one million dollars ($1,000,000) bodily injury 
by disease – each employee.  Worker’s compensation coverage in “monopolistic” states is 
administered by the individual state and coverage is not provided by private insurers.  Individual 
states operate a state administered fund of workers compensation insurance which set coverage 
limits and rates.  Monopolistic states: Ohio, North Dakota, Washington, Wyoming. 

C. Commercial general liability insurance with minimum combined single limits of one million dollars 
($1,000,000) each occurrence and two million dollars ($2,000,000) general aggregate.  The policy 
shall be applicable to all premises and operations.  The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, 
broad form property damage, personal injury (including coverage for contractual and employee 
acts), blanket contractual, independent Consultant’s, and products.  The policy shall contain a 
severability of interest provision and shall be endorsed to include Municipality and Municipality’s 
officers, employees, and consultants as additional insureds.   

D. Professional liability insurance with minimum limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) each claim 
and two million dollars ($2,000,000) general aggregate. 

E. Automobile Liability: If performance of this Agreement requires use of motor vehicles licensed for 
highway use, Automobile Liability Coverage is required that shall cover all owned, non-owned, and 
hired automobiles with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit each accident. 

F. Municipality shall be named as an additional insured on Consultant’s insurance coverage. 
G. Prior to commencement of Services, Consultant shall submit certificates of insurance acceptable to 

Municipality. 



Page 5 of 11 
 

 

 
15. THIRD PARTY RELIANCE 

This Agreement is intended for the mutual benefit of Parties hereto and no third-party rights are intended or 
implied. 
 

16. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Municipality shall retain ownership of all Materials and of all 
work product and deliverables created by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. The Materials, work product 
and deliverables shall be used by Consultant solely as provided in this Agreement and for no other purposes 
without the express prior written consent of Municipality.  As between Municipality and Consultant, all work 
product and deliverables shall become the exclusive property of Municipality when Consultant has been 
compensated for the same as set forth herein, and Municipality shall thereafter retain sole and exclusive rights 
to receive and use such materials in such manner and for such purposes as determined by it. Notwithstanding 
the preceding, Consultant may use the Materials, work product, deliverables, applications, records, 
documents and other materials provided to perform the Services or resulting from the Services, for purposes 
of (i) benchmarking of Municipality’s and other client’s performance relative to that of other groups of 
customers served by Consultant; (ii)  improvement, development marketing and sales of existing and future 
Consultant services, tools and products; (iii) monitoring Service performance and making improvements to 
the Services.  For the avoidance of doubt, Municipality Data will be provided to third parties, other than 
hosting providers, development consultants and other third parties providing services for Consultant, only on 
an anonymized basis and only as part of a larger body of anonymized data.   If this Agreement expires or is 
terminated for any reason, all records, documents, notes, data and other materials maintained or stored in 
Consultant’s secure proprietary software pertaining to Municipality will, within thirty (30) days of expiration 
or termination be exported into a CSV file by Consultant and become property of Municipality.  If Municipality 
exercises the option for Consultant to complete through final inspection any permits not completed by 
termination date pursuant to Section 6.  Consultant will provide all records pertaining to these inspections 
within thirty (30) days of end of Consultants obligation to inspect.    Notwithstanding the preceding, Consultant 
shall own all rights and title to any Consultant provided software and any improvements or derivative works 
thereof.   
 
Upon reasonable prior written notice, Municipality and its duly authorized representatives shall have access 
to any books, documents, papers and records of Consultant that are related to this Agreement for the 
purposes of audit or examination, other than Consultant’s financial records, and may make excerpts and 
transcriptions of the same at the cost and expense of Municipality. 
 

17. CONSULTANT ACCESS TO RECORDS 
Parties acknowledge that Consultant requires access to Records in order for Consultant to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement.  Accordingly, Municipality will either provide to Consultant on a daily basis 
such data from the Records as Consultant may reasonably request (in an agreed electronic format) or grant 
Consultant access to its Records and Record management systems so that Consultant may download such 
data.  Data provided to or downloaded by Consultant pursuant to this Section shall be used by Consultant 
solely in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  
 

18. CONFIDENTIALITY 
Consultant shall not disclose, directly or indirectly, any confidential information or trade secrets of 
Municipality without the prior written consent of Municipality or pursuant to a lawful court order directing 
such disclosure.   

  



Page 6 of 11 
 

 

19. CONSULTANT PERSONNEL 
Consultant shall employ a sufficient number of experienced and knowledgeable employees to perform 
Services in a timely, polite, courteous and prompt manner.    Consultant shall determine appropriate staffing 
levels and shall promptly inform Municipality of any reasonably anticipated or known employment-related 
actions which may affect the performance of Services.  Additional staffing resources shall be made available 
to Municipality when assigned employee(s) is unavailable. 
 

20. DISCRIMINATION & ADA COMPLIANCE   
Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, 
religion, age, sex, disability, national origin or any other category protected by applicable federal or state law.  
Such action shall include but not be limited to the following:  employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, 
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places, available 
to employees and applicants for employment, notice to be provided by an agency of the federal government, 
setting forth the provisions of Equal Opportunity laws.  Consultant shall comply with the appropriate 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (the “ADA”), as enacted and as from time to time amended, 
and any other applicable federal regulations.  A signed certificate confirming compliance with the ADA may 
be requested by Municipality at any time during the term of this Agreement. 
 

21. E-VERIFY/VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT STATUS  
Pursuant to FS 448.095, Consultant certifies that it is registered with and uses the U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by 
Consultant during the term of the Agreement.   Consultant shall not knowingly employ or contract with an 
illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement and will verify immigration status to confirm employment 
eligibility. If Consultant enters into a contract with a subcontractor to perform work or provide services 
pursuant to the Agreement, Consultant shall likewise require the subcontractor to comply with the 
requirements of FS 448.095, and the subcontractor shall provide to Consultant an affidavit stating that the 
subcontractor does not employ, contract with or subcontract with an unauthorized alien.  Consultant will 
maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of its contract with owner.  Consultant is prohibited from 
using the E-Verify program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this 
Agreement is being performed. 
 

22. NOTICES  
Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed sufficient when presented in person, 
or sent, pre-paid, first class United States Mail, or delivered by electronic mail to the following addresses: 

If to Municipality: If to Consultant: 
Rachel Roberts, Planning & Community Development Director 
City of Crowley 
201 East Main Street 
Crowley, TX 76036 
Email:  rroberts@ci.crowley.tx.us  

Joe DeRosa, CRO 
SAFEbuilt, LLC 
444 N. Cleveland, Suite 444 
Loveland, CO 80537 
Email:  jderosa@safebuilt.com   
 

 
23. FORCE MAJEURE 

Any delay or nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement by either Party (with the exception of 
payment obligations) which is caused by events beyond the reasonable control of such party, shall not 
constitute a breach of this Agreement, and the time for performance of such provision, if any, shall be deemed 
to be extended for a period equal to the duration of the conditions preventing such performance. 

  

mailto:rroberts@ci.crowley.tx.us
mailto:jderosa@safebuilt.com


Page 7 of 11 
 

 

24. DISPUTE RESOLUTION  
In the event a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, and if said dispute 
cannot be settled through negotiation, Parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute by mediation, 
before resorting to arbitration, litigation, or some other dispute resolution procedure.  The cost thereof shall 
be borne equally by each Party. 
 

25. ATTORNEY’S FEES 
In the event of litigation to enforce any of the terms herein, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 
from the non-prevailing party the prevailing party’s reasonable attorney fee and court costs. 
 

26. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE 
The person or persons executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they are fully authorized to sign 
and so execute this Agreement and to bind their respective entities to the performance of its obligations 
hereunder. 
 

27. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Consultant shall refrain from providing services to other persons, firms, or entities that would create a conflict 
of interest for Consultant with regard to providing the Services pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall 
not offer or provide anything of benefit to any Municipal official or employee that would place the official or 
employee in a position of violating the public trust as provided under Municipality’s charter and code of 
ordinances, state or federal statute, case law or ethical principles. 
 

28. TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE/PROHIBITION OF BOYCOTT ISRAEL 
Consultant verifies that it does not Boycott Israel and agrees that during the term of this Agreement will not 
Boycott Israel as that term is defined in Texas Government Code Section 808.001/2270.001, as amended. By 
signing below, the Consultant certifies that it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel during the 
term of this contract. 
 

29. TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE/PROHIBITION OF BOYCOTT FIREARMS AND AMMUNITION INDUSTRIES 
Senate Bill 19, Effective September 1, 2021, amended Subtitle F, Title 10 of the Texas Government Code to 
add Chapter 2274 which prohibits a political subdivision of the State of Texas from entering into a contract 
with a company that discriminates against the firearms and ammunition industries. By signing below, 
Consultant certifies that it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a 
firearm entity or firearm trade association as defined by Chapter 2274 of the Texas Government Code, and 
will not so discriminate during the term of the contract. 
 

30. TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE/PROHIBITION OF BOYCOTT ENERGY COMPANIES 
Senate Bill 13, effective September 1, 2022, amended Subtitle F, Title 10 of the Texas Government Code to 
add Section 2274.002 which prohibits a political subdivision of the State of Texas from entering into a contract 
with a company that discriminates against energy companies. By signing below, the Consultant certifies that 
it does not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy companies during the term of this contract. 
 

31. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 
The negotiation and interpretation of this Agreement shall be construed under and governed by the laws of 
the State of Texas, without regards to its choice of laws provisions.  Exclusive venue for any action under this 
Agreement, other than an action solely for equitable relief, shall be in the state and federal courts serving 
Municipality (Tarrant County, Texas) and each party waives any and all jurisdictional and other objections to 
such exclusive venue.   

  



Page 8 of 11 
 

 

32. COUNTERPARTS 
This Agreement and any amendments or task orders may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.  For purposes 
of executing this Agreement, scanned signatures shall be as valid as the original. 
 

33. ELECTRONIC REPRESENTATIONS AND RECORDS 
Parties hereby agree to regard electronic representations of original signatures as legally sufficient for 
executing this Agreement and scanned signatures emailed by PDF or otherwise shall be as valid as the original.  
Parties agree not to deny the legal effect or enforceability of the Agreement solely because it is in electronic 
form or because an electronic record was used in its formation.  Parties agree not to object to the admissibility 
of the Agreement in the form of an electronic record, or a paper copy of an electronic document, or a paper 
copy of a document bearing an electronic signature, on the ground that it is an electronic record or electronic 
signature or that it is not in its original form or is not an original. 
 

34. WAIVER 
Failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of that provision.  Waiver of 
any right or power arising out of this Agreement shall not be deemed waiver of any other right or power. 
 

35. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement, along with attached exhibits, constitutes the complete, entire and final agreement of the 
Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall supersede any and all previous agreements, 
communications, representations, whether oral or written, with respect to the subject matter hereof.  
Invalidation of any of the provisions of this Agreement or any paragraph sentence, clause, phrase, or word 
herein or the application thereof in any given circumstance shall not affect the validity of any other provision 
of this Agreement. 
 

37. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY 
It is expressly understood and agreed that the execution of this Agreement shall in no way be constructed or 
deemed a waiver of governmental immunity from suit or liability that would otherwise be available to 
Municipality against claims arising in the exercise of governmental powers and functions. 

 
IN WITNESS HEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Agreement to be executed in their respective names on 
the dates hereinafter enumerated. 
 
______________________________  ____________________ 
Gary Amato, CAO    Date 
SAFEbuilt Texas, LLC  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________ 
Signature     Date 
City of Crowley, Texas 
 
 

_____________________________   
Name and Title      
City of Crowley, Texas 

 

  

October 11, 2023



Page 9 of 11 
 

 

EXHIBIT A – LIST OF SERVICES AND FEE SCHEDULE 
 

 
1. FEE SCHEDULE  

1.1. Beginning 24 months after the execution of this Agreement, Municipality and Consultant agree to 
discuss revisions to Consultants service fees to reflect increases in the costs incurred by Consultant to 
provide service. 

1.2. Consultant fees for Services provided pursuant to this Agreement are on an as-requested basis by the 
Municipality and will be as follows: 

 
2. CODE REFERENCE 

2.1. Plan Review and Inspection of commercial and residential construction to verify compliance with the 
Municipality’s locally adopted codes and amendments to those locally adopted codes and the 
International Code Council (ICC) series of I-Codes including the International Building Code, 
International Residential Code and all other ICC series of I-Codes adopted by the Municipality, and the 
current edition of the National Electrical Code (or later versions as adopted by the Municipality), as 
published by the National Fire Protection Association. 

 
3. PLAN REVIEW 

3.1. Plan Review for residential projects shall be performed within five (5) days of notification by the 
Municipality, while commercial projects shall be performed within ten (10) days of notification by the 
Municipality.  All reasonable effort shall be made by Consultant to perform plan reviews when, at the 
request of the Municipality, there is a need for immediate services. 
 

PLAN REVIEW FEES 
Residential Projects (based on flat fees) 
Residential Single-Family Home (New, Addition, or Model) $ 225 per plan review 
Residential Miscellaneous (Remodel, duplicate of Model previously 
reviewed or other plan review)  $ 175 per plan review 

Commercial Project (based on building valuation) 
 $1 to $100,000  $ 338 per plan review 

$100,001 to $500,000 $337.78 for the first $100,000   plus $1.90 for each additional $1,000; or 
fraction thereof, to and including $500,000 

$500,001 to $1,000,000 $1,097.78 for the first $500,000   plus $1.62 for each additional $1,000; or 
fraction thereof, to and including $1,000,000 

$1,000,001 to $5,000,000 $1,907.78 for the first $1,000,000   plus $1.07 for each additional $1,000; or 
fraction thereof 

$5,000,001 and up Call SAFEbuilt for pricing determination 
 
 
4. INSPECTIONS 

4.1. Inspections requested by 4pm shall be performed the next business day by Consultant.  All reasonable 
effort shall be made by Consultant to perform inspections when, at the request of Municipality, there is 
a need for immediate services.  Such inspections shall be performed at no additional cost to 
Municipality.  Consultant will provide next day inspection services for all inspection requests received 
before 4 pm.  Inspection only services for all projects will be provided on a stop basis fee as detailed in 
the table below: 
 
 



Page 10 of 11 
 

 

INSPECTION FEES 
 Residential - Local  $ 70 per stop 
 Commercial - Local  $ 85 per stop 

EXAMPLE OF A STOP – One Address, All Inspections = One Stop 
123 Alphabet Lane Plumbing Rough - Electrical Rough - Mechanical Rough 

 
 
5. HOURLY RATES – SERVICES BEYOND PLAN REVIEW AND INSPECTIONS 

5.1. Consultant may provide Municipality with a qualified Permit Technician, Code Enforcement Officer, 
Building Official, City Planner, Floodplain Reviewer, Fire Marshal, Sub-Standard Building Inspector, 
Senior City Planner or Civil Engineer to perform duties as requested. 

5.2. Assist the Building Department in implementing procedures to make the building department more 
effective, advise and assist with engineering reviews, zoning ordinance review and edits, project 
management, code adoption or other services as requested.  Consultant staff shall make a diligent 
effort to recommend and implement agreed upon improvements. 

5.3. Municipality from time to time may request building code interpretation or explanation from the 
Consultant based on their expertise in this field.  Even when Consultant is performing Building Official 
responsibilities for the Municipality, the final interpretive authority rests with the Municipality. 

5.4. Consultant’s Code Enforcement services typically includes investigations into a reported issue, 
attendance at council meetings for specific discussion, attendance at meetings to discuss known issue 
coming before municipality, attendance for representation of issue going before the municipal court, 
and assistance in code writing for issue prevention or enforcement process.  Even when Consultant is 
performing duties as the Code Enforcement Officer for the Municipality, the final interpretive authority 
rests with the Municipality.  For this service all time worked, whether in the field performing 
inspections, in the office completing paperwork, or any other time spent related to the Code 
Enforcement service, will be billed on an hourly basis per fee schedule below. 

5.5. When Consultant’s Code Enforcement service is specific to inspections of a Sub-Standard Building, the 
Consultant may include a Building Official as part of the Code Enforcement Service team.  Estimated 
hours of involvement for this second team member can be discussed with the Municipality prior to the 
start of the requested substandard building inspection.  The service performed by the Building Official 
in support of a substandard building inspection will be billed on an hourly basis per the fee schedule 
below. 

5.6. Floodplain Review Services includes assisting with the Municipality floodplain oversight program.  
Typically, this service includes review of elevation certificate, assist with floodplain documentation 
required prior to Certificate of Occupancy, and assess Municipality current floodplain review practices 
and ordinance.  For this service all time worked is on an hourly basis per fee schedule below. 

5.7. These services detailed shall be performed at an hourly rate and provided only at the direct request of 
the Municipality for a fee as detailed below: 

 

HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE 
 Permit Tech Services  $   60 per hour 
 Code Enforcement Officer  $   85 per hour 
 Building Official / City Planner / Floodplain Review Services  $ 105 per hour 
 Fire Marshal / Sub-Standard Building Inspection Services  $ 125 per hour 
 Senior City Planner  $ 150 per hour 
 Civil Engineer   $ 250 per hour 

 

  



Page 11 of 11 
 

 

EXHIBIT B – MUNICIPAL SPECIFIED OR SAFEBUILT PROVIDED SOFTWARE 
 
1. Consultant shall provide Services pursuant to this Agreement using hardware and Consultant’s standard 

software package, unless otherwise provided below.  Use of Consultant’s software shall be subject to the 
applicable terms of service, privacy and other policies published by Consultant with respect to that software, 
as those policies may be amended from time to time.  In the event that Municipality requires that Consultant 
utilize hardware and/or software specified by and provided by Municipality, Consultant shall use reasonable 
commercial efforts to comply with Municipal requirements. 

 
2. Municipality, at its sole expense, shall provide such technical support, equipment or other facilities as 

Consultant may reasonably request to permit Consultant to comply with Municipal requirements. 
Municipality will provide the following information to Consultant. 
 Municipal technology point of contact information including name, title, email and phone number 
 List of technology services, devices and software that the Municipality will provide may include: 

 Client network access 
 Internet access 
 Proprietary or commercial software and access 
 Computer workstations/laptops 
 Mobile devices 
 Printers/printing services 
 Data access 
 List of reports and outputs 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(Balance of page left intentionally blank) 

 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

V-PRESENTER: Carol Konhauser 
City Secretary MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: VII-5 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider Special Event Permit application for the Karis Grand 
Opening Event to be held on Saturday, October 28, 2023. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

The Nehemiah Company has submitted a special event permit application to hold a Grand Opening 
Event on Saturday, October 28, 2023 from 9:00 am - 2:00 pm.  They will be having a pumpkin patch, 
face painting, and food/beverages.   

RECOMMENDATION:  

Recommend consideration of the Special Event Permit. 

FISCAL INFORMATION:  

None. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Special Event Application 
 



Section 1 – Applicant Information 
Name of Applicant (must be on site during the event) Today's Date 

Address City State Zip 

Phone Number Cell Phone Number 

Email 

Section 2 – Sponsoring Organization Information 
Corporation/Organization Name of D.B.A. Type of Organization 

     For Profit    Non-Profit Other: 
Name of Contact Email: 

Address City State Zip 

Phone Number Cell Phone Number 

Section 2 – Event Information 
Name of Event Anticipated Daily Attendance 

Location of Event/physical address 

Property Owner Owner Phone 

Owner Email: Has the property owner given authorization to use property? 
Yes  No 

Detailed Description of  Event 

Date Time Day of Week
Setup    M      T      W          Th   F      Sat      Sun 
Event Start    M      T      W          Th   F      Sat      Sun 
Event End    M      T      W          Th   F      Sat      Sun 
Teardown    M      T      W          Th   F      Sat      Sun 
Additional Information: 

Special Events 
Permit Application 

City Secretary's Office 
201 E Main Street 
Crowley TX 76036 

(817) 297-2201 ext 4000

Permit applications shall be filed with the city secretary or designee for consideration on a first come first serve basis not less than 
21 days or more than 365 days before the date of the proposed use or activity.  In the event of a street closure, 
applications must be submitted not less than 45 days in advance. Due to the state department of transportation 
requirements, closure of any state highway for more than six (6) hours will require 90 days' advance notice to the city. 
The application will either be approved, approved with conditions, denied, or more information will be requested within five 
business days of submission to the city secretary. Due to the nature of some events, additional information may be requested. A 
deposit will be required for certain types of events. The deposits shall be set forth in the city fee schedule listed as Appendix A
to the City of Crowley Code of Ordinances.    

All applicants will be charged facility rental fees as appropriate and are expected to fully reimburse the City for all services 
related to event production which may include, but are not limited to, Police, Fire/EMS, Park and Facility Maintenance, Field 
Services, Sanitation, Street Engineering, Site Supervisors, Environmental, and all necessary permit fees including: Beer and Wine, 
Tent, Fireworks, Carnival, Sign, etc.  Applicants are responsible for returning City facilities and parks their original condition.  Daily 
fees will be assessed until all event equipment is removed from City premises. Full payment is due upon receipt of final invoice. 



Section 3 – Event Features 
Will there be an admission charge? Yes No If yes, list all price categories below. 

Will there be entertainment?   Yes No If yes, please attach a complete list of entertainment. 
A complete list of entertainment will be required before final approval.  Once approved, no changes may be made unless authorized. 

Will sound amplification be used at the event? Yes No If yes, explain below 

Will merchandise and/or food items be sold?  Yes No If yes, please attach a complete list of vendors. 
Booths will need to be inspected and have proper food handling permits 

Have you hired a licensed professional emergency medical service provider to manage your event's medical plan?  If yes please list below. 
(Fee may be charged for Emergency Service personnel) Yes No 
Medical Service Provider Phone 

Will the event include any of the following? (Indicate on site plan and/or vendor list) 
Tents or Canopies   Yes No Complete Tent Worksheet and attach with site plan 

Tents require temporary use permits issued by the city upon Fire Department review (additional fees may be applicable). 
Temporary tents must adhere to the International Fire Code 

Inflatables Yes No Total Sq Ft: 
If inflatable exceeds 400 sq ft, additional permit is required 

Company Contact name and phone 

Fireworks/Pyrotechnics   Yes No 
Fireworks/Pyrotechnics require permits from the City Fire Department (additional fees may be applicable) 

Temporary Fencing Yes No 
Provide accurate dimensions of fenced area on site plan. 

Temporary fencing requires temporary use permits issued by the city (additional fees may be applicable). 
Temporary restrooms or refuse collection provided? Yes No 
(All trach and debris must be removed) 

Company Contact  name and phone 

Carnival/Amusement Rides Yes No 
A separate Special Use Permit may be required. (additional fees may be applicable) 

Company Contact  name and phone 

Signs / Banners Yes No 
A separate Sign Permit may be required. (additional fees may be applicable) 

Company Contact  name and phone 

Will animals be used in conjunction with event? Yes No If yes, describe below. 

Description: 

Is this a run, walk or parade?   Yes No 
If yes, attach a map identifying assembly location and route on site plan.  Must be submitted 21-days prior to event.  
(Fee may be charged for Public Service Personnel) 

Section 4 – Roadways and Sidewalks 
Does the event propose using, closing or blocking any of the following   If yes, specify location and duration on site map.  
(Fee may be charged for Public Service personnel) 
 City Streets Yes No . City Sidewalks Yes No 

City Right-of-Ways Yes No Public Parking Lots Yes No 

Section 5 – Use of City Utilities (Fee may be charged for the use of City Utilities) 
Will any City electric hookups be used? Yes No Electric Location including amperage 

Will any City water hookups be used? Yes No Water Location(s) 

Will waste water/gray water be generated? Yes No Is so, how will it be disposed? 

Sound amplification: 



 

Section 6 – Alcohol 
Will there be alcohol at the event?    Yes No  

At no time will alcohol be distributed or consumed in City Parks and/or streets to include Park Pavilions.   
All activities involving alcohol will require the presence of an off-duty City police officer.  The applicant will be required to pay for an officer 
to be present for a minimum of 3 hours or the full amount of time that alcohol is served.  Consumption of alcohol without the presence of an 

officer or a violation of the provision of the City Ordinances will result in forfeiture of the rental deposit.  

The Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) requires specific and specialized permits for selling/serving alcohol. These permits will be 
based on the parameters and scope of the desired service and the type of event. Due to the numerous scenarios that may be involved in your 
event, it is impossible to outline the requirements in this application. It is your responsibility to contact the TABC office and speak to an 

Agent who will be the entity for permission and, if approved, provide the exact permit(s) required.   
Permission by the City to hold a Special Event does not guarantee permission from TABC to serve/sell alcohol. Your event may be approved 

by the City but the service and selling of alcohol is the domain of the TABC and may be denied at their discretion. 
Permission by the TABC to serve/sell alcohol at a Special Event does not guarantee permission of the City.   

Will alcohol be provided free of charge?    Yes No 

To be considered "free," there cannot be an expectation of receiving money.  You cannot charge for admission, ask for donations or accept 
tips.   Doing so would constitute a sale of alcohol and would require a Texas Alcohol Beverage Commission and City Permit. 

Will you be charging an entrance or registration fee?    Yes No 

Will the alcohol be sold?    Yes No 
If you answered Yes, a Texas Alcohol Beverage Commission and City Permit will be required. 

TABC License #_____________________________________ Expiration ______________________ 

 
Section 11 – Insurance Requirements 
The City of Crowley has established insurance requirements for those facility users, vendors and contractors entering into agreements 
with the City for the purpose of special events and activities.  Before commencing use or services under an agreement with the City of 
Crowley a certificate of insurance that complies with the requirements referenced below must be furnished. 
 
All special event applicants shall name the City of Crowley as an “Additional Insured” on all policies, and shall reflect this on a 
Certificate of Liability Insurance.  A pplicant shall obtain Certificates of Liability Insurance from all vendors participating in this event 
unless covered under the applicant’s insurance policy.  Separate Certificates of Insurance Liability shall be provided by all carnival and 
amusement companies and firework production companies and shall name the City of Crowley as “Additional Insured."  Additional 
coverage may be required depending upon the nature and scope of the event.  The City of Crowley reserves the right to evaluate the 
liability of each event and assess the required insurance limits.  Event permits will not be issued until all insurance requirements are 
satisfactorily met. 
 
The certificate must show: 
1.  The City of Crowley as “Additional Insured.” 
2.  General Liability Including: 
 Bodily injury 
 Property damage 
 Medical Expense 
 Personal Injury 
 
Organized League Play 
Any organization or group who is renting an athletic field for the purpose of organized league play must provide the following 
documents: 
1.  Certificate of Liability Insurance.  The city and the group or organization must be co-insured by the policy.  The policy must 
include a minimum of $500,000.00 per incident, with not less than $1,000,000.00 aggregate with the same remaining in effect for the 
term of this agreement. Failure to maintain such insurance shall be cause for immediate cancellation of event/reservation; 
2.  Health permit (if renting concession stand); 
3.  Player insurance; 
4.  State Charter; 
5.  Bylaws; 
6.  Schedule; and 
7.  Emergency contact information. 

 



Section 12 – Compliance with Laws and City Ordinances 
1.  The applicant will clean the grounds, remove equipment, and restore the permitted site after the event. 
2.  The applicant is responsible for providing parking assistance if required. 
3.  Adequate policing for crowd control must be provided by applicant.  Off duty officers are available by calling 817-297-2276. 
4.  The applicant will not nail, staple, or otherwise attach any event-connected signs to any guard post, sign post, utility pole or 
tree.  
5.  Admission to the event will not be limited to membership nor will any discrimination be made against a person because of race, 
creed, sex, color, age, or national origin in conducting the event.  Admission to view the event will be open to the general public 
without discrimination on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, or age.  Participation in the event may be limited 
to members of the sponsoring group, provided that the group does not unlawfully discriminate against participation in the event 
on grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, or age.  Request for Special Event Application citing special circumstances 
for participation requiring gender or age discrimination must be accompanied by an exceedingly persuasive justification. 
6.  If necessary, the applicant will furnish a map showing the area where the special event is to be conducted. 

 
 

Section 13 – Acknowledgement and Signature 

 
I hereby certify that I have read and examined this application and know the same to be true and correct.  All provisions of laws 
and ordinances governing this type of event will be complied with whether specified herein or not.  The granting of a permit does 
not presume to give authority to violate or cancel the provisions of any other state or local ordinances regulating this type of event 
or the use of any land or buildings. 
 
I hereby certify that I have received the property owners consent to utilize above location for the period of time and purpose 
stated. 
 
I further understand that any deviation from this Application could result in the City closing down or canceling the Event. I 
understand that a Special Event Permit must be approved by the City of Crowley prior to the occurrence of this Event. The 
issuance of that permit is contingent upon the compliance with the Special Event Application and acceptance of all listed 
stipulations or conditions of the Special Event Permit. 

Signature: Date: 

 
Section 13 – Acknowledgement and Signature 

Included N/A 
   Certificate of Liability Insurance 
   Detailed Site Plan 
   Route Map 
   Amusement Ride Certification of Inspection 
   Tent Permit Application 

Public Works 

 Approved Denied Initials 

Remarks 

Fire Department 

 Approved Denied Initials 

Remarks 

Police Department 

 Approved Denied Initials 

Remarks 

Recreation Center  

 Approved Denied Initials 

Remarks 

City Council 

 Approved Denied Initials 

Remarks 

 
 
  



Application for Tent Permit 

Section 1 – Applicant Information 
Name of Applicant Today's Date 

Address City State Zip 

Phone Number Cell Phone Number 

Email 

Section 2 – Person/Organization/Contractor Responsible for Erection of Tent 
Organization 

Address City State Zip 

Phone Number Cell Phone Number 

Email 

Section 3 - Tent Information
Location of Tent Number of Tents Zoning District 

Purpose of Tent/Usage Description 

Description of Tent (if multiple list details of each tent) 
Size (ft) Area (sq ft) Tent Separation (ft) Side Walls Additional Info 
1. x Yes No 
2. x Yes No 
3. x Yes No 
4. x Yes No 
5. x Yes No 
Attach site plan which includes the following: 

1. Accurate site plan with dimensions from property lines and other structures
2. Floor plan showing all required exits, no smoking signs, square footage and height of structure
3. Occupant Load per manufacturer guidelines
4. Membrane type and Fire Resistance Certification (must be attached)
5. Locations of fire extinguishers.
6. Location of parking
7. Location and distance of all heat producing equipment
8. Location and distance of all generators

Date to be erected Date to be taken down 

I hereby certify that I have received the property owners consent to erect a temporary tent at the above location for the period of time and 
purpose stated. 

I agree to meet requirements of the International Fire Code regarding tents and other membrane structures and all other regulations or 
ordinances of the City.  I acknowledge that violations of any of the codes, regulations or ordinances will result in immediate revocation of 
this permit.   

Signature Date 

Planning and Development 
Approved Disapproved 

Notes/Special Conditions: 

Fire Marshal 
Approved Disapproved 

Notes/Special Conditions: 

Fee - Date Paid Amount Paid Permit Issued (Number) 

Tent Application



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Lori Watson 
Deputy City Manager MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: VII-6 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approving Ordinance No 10-2023-508, amending 
Appendix A, Schedule of Rates, Fees, and Charges, Section (22) Other fees and 
charges for community development, by amending the Subdivision 
construction inspection fees. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec cck Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  
The Texas State Legislature adopted House Bill 3492 relating to municipal authority to impose certain 
value-based fees.  It prohibits cities from basing any application, review, inspection, or other related 
fees for constructing or improving public infrastructure for a subdivision lot on the cost or value of the 
infrastructure project.  This bill became effective September 1, 2023. 
 
Currently, the City of Crowley charges a 4% inspection fee for permitted construction within the city. 
The proposed ordinance will update the fee schedule to include an hourly rate to be charged for review 
and inspection of constructing and improving public infrastructure.    
 
HB 3492 states the following: “In determining the municipality’s actual cost for reviewing and 
processing an engineering or construction plan or inspecting a public infrastructure improvement 
under Subsection (b), a municipality may consider: 

1.  The fee that would be charged by a qualified independent third-party entity for those services; 
2. The hourly rate for the estimated actual direct time of the municipality’s employees performing 

those services; or 
3. The actual costs assessed to the municipality by a third-party entity that provides those services 

to the municipality.   
The city is proposing $250.00 per hour for these fees, which reflects the actual cost for a third party to 
provide the services to the city.  After-hour inspections will be charged $350.00 per hour with a one-
hour minimum.  City staff will be responsible for keeping records of time spent to calculate the fees to 
be assessed on each project.   
RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval Ordinance 10-2023-508 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Ordinance 10-2023-508 
 



Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO.  10-2023-508 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CROWLEY, TEXAS, AMENDING APPENDIX A, SCHEDULE OF RATES, 
FEES AND CHARGES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO UPDATE 
THE SUBDIVISION CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION FEES LISTED 
UNDER SECTION (22) OTHER FEES AND CHARGES FOR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT; PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE 
SHALL BE CUMULATIVE OF ALL ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Crowley, Texas, is a home rule City acting under its charter 
adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 
9 of the Local Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the fee schedule of the City of Crowley, has been codified as Appendix A, 
Schedule of Rates, Fees, and Charges, of the Crowley Code of Ordinances; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Appendix A of the Code of Ordinances establishes various fees for City 
services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Texas House Bill 3492 adopted by the Texas State Legislature relating to 
municipal authority to impose certain value-based fees for the acceptance, review, or processing 
of engineering or construction plans or for the inspection of the improvements for construction of 
public infrastructure for a subdivision, lots, or related property development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to amend its schedule of fees by amending the 
Subdivision construction inspection fees listed in Section (22), "Other fees and charges for 
community development” of Appendix A, Schedule of Rates, Fees, and Charges; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CROWLEY, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. 
 
 That Section (22), Other fees and charges for community development, in Appendix A:  
Schedule of Rates, Fees and Charges of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Crowley, Texas, be 
and is hereby amended as follows, which is incorporated by reference herein: 

 
(22) Other fees and charges for community development. 

Subdivision construction inspection 

Total cost of the public 
improvements  
Review and Inspection Fee (related 
to construction and improving 
public infrastructure for a 
subdivision lot 

Four percent  
$250.00 per hour 
$375.00 per hour for any inspections occurring outside of 
normal business hours with a minimum of two hours 
 



Page 2 of 3 

Engineering review—Site plan, 
preliminary plat, or replat  

An engineering review fee of $500.00 plus the total cost 
(100 percent) in excess of $500.00 for any outside 
sources used by the city will be paid by the developer 
prior to issuance of any building permits or acceptance of 
public improvements. This fee includes any discussions 
or meetings with applicants as part of the development 
approval process.  

Engineering review—Final plat or 
pre-application civil plan review  

An engineering review fee of $1,500.00 plus the total 
cost (100 percent) in excess of $1,500.00 for any outside 
sources used by the city will be paid by the developer 
prior to issuance of any building permits or acceptance of 
public improvements.  

Street signs  Full cost due prior to issuance of building permits  

Stop signs  Full cost due prior to issuance of building permits  

Park land dedication, fees in lieu of 
land, per unit or lot  

1.5 acres per 100 dwelling unit; or $600.00 per dwelling 
unit  

Park development fee  $600.00 per dwelling unit  

Property abatement (high grass/trash/debris) 

Administration fee (includes cost 
associated with certified mailings, 
photographs, inspections and 
reinspection of property)  

$25.00  

Residential abatement fee: Any 
outside services used by the city 
shall be paid at 100 percent of the 
cost to the city  

The city will charge 100 percent of incurred expenses by 
the city  

Commercial abatement fee 
(undeveloped property—SF20 or 
larger property)  

Cost for outside services used by the city shall be paid at 
100 percent of the cost  

Filing fees 

Recording and releasing of liens  $40.00 + county filing fees  

Credit Card Processing Fee  3.25% of transaction total  

 
SECTION 2. 

 
All other sections and subsections of Appendix A, Schedule of Rates, Fees and Charges are to 
remain as.    

SECTION 3. 
 

 This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of ordinances of the City of Crowley, 
Texas, except where the provisions of this ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of 
such ordinances, in which event the conflicting provisions of such ordinances are hereby repealed.  



Page 3 of 3 

 
SECTION 4. 

 
 It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, clause 
sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect 
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since 
the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

SECTION 5. 
 
 The City Secretary of the City of Crowley is hereby directed to publish in the official 
newspaper of the City of Crowley, the caption, penalty clause, and effective date clause of this 
ordinance as authorized by the City Charter and Section 52.013 of the Local Government Code. 
 

SECTION 6. 
 
This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, and it is so ordained. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 19th DAY OF October 2023. 
 
      CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Mayor, Billy P. Davis 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Rob Allibon, City Attorney 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: M. Tate MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Police AGENDA ITEM: VII-7 

SUBJECT:   Consider approval of resolution R10-2023-401, authorizing the Chief of Police 
to enter into a contract agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation 
for the installation of FLOCK Safety Automated License Place Recognition 
(ALPR) cameras on TxDOT property and right-of-way.   

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec CCK Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  EDC: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Admin: 
  

BACKGROUND: 
 

 

In June 2022, the police department was approved to purchase five (5) stationary Flock Safety Systems 
License Plate Reading Cameras.  The locations of all five (5) cameras are to be affixed to TxDOT 
property (traffic poles) or are being placed in the TxDOT right-of-way.  The police department is 
requesting the City enter into a contract agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation 
allowing the installation and operation of the Flock Safety Automated License Plate Recognition 
Cameras. 
This no-cost MUA will allow Flock Safety to complete installation on TxDOT property and right-of-
way.  With successful installation of these cameras our Flock Safety Program installation phase will be 
completed.   
The cameras will be located at:  
1.  S. Crowley Rd @ South Hampton  
2.  FM 1187 (Crowley Plover Rd) @ Oak View Dr WB  
3.  E. Main St. @ Heritage Dr WB  
4.  N Crowley Rd @ Industrial Blvd SB  
5.  1200 Block FM 1187 EB  

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

No financial impact. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Agreement  
2.  Resolution 

 



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION R10-2023-401 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CROWLEY, 
TEXAS, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY CHIEF OF 
POLICE TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR THE 
INSTALLATION OF FLOCK SAFETY AUTOMATED LICENSE PLATE 
RECOGNITION (ALPR) CAMERAS, AND AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF OF 
POLICE TO SIGN SAID CONTRACT UPON LEGAL REVIEW. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Crowley, Texas (the “City Council”), has 
determined the addition of Automated License Plate Recognition (ALPR) cameras would increase 
public safety the aiding the police department in its crime prevention and criminal investigation 
efforts and strategies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has authorized and funded the acquisition and installation 
of five (5) ALPR cameras within the City through the Crime Control Prevention District Fund FY 
2022-23 budget resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desired to engage the services of Flock Safety, Inc. for the 
acquisition, installation, maintenance, and monitoring of five (5) fixed, pole-mounted ALPR 
cameras; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council, through approval of the FY 2022-23 budget resolution, 
authorized the Chief of Police (or his designee) to execute a Multiple Use Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 
 
N NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CROWLEY, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Recitals Incorporated 
 
 The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein for all purposes as if set forth in full. 
 
Section 2. Approval of Agreement 
 
 The City Council, by approving the decision package for five (5) ALPR cameras from 
Flock Safety, Inc., authorized the expenditure for the acquisition, installation, maintenance, and 
monitoring of five (5) ALPR cameras from Flock Safety, Inc. The City Council further authorized 
the Chief of Police (or his designee) to execute any associated documents necessary to consummate 
the business relationship after review and approval of the City Attorney. 
 
Section 3. Open Meeting Act.  

 
 It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this resolution was 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of 



Page 2 of 2 

said meeting was given as required by the Open Meeting Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas 
Government Code. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 19th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2023. 
 
      CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Billy P. Davis, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary 
 



 
Form 2044 
Page 1 of 10 

(Rev. 8/21) MULTIPLE USE AGREEMENT 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

THIS AGREEMENT made by the State of Texas by and between the Texas Department of 
Transportation, hereinafter referred to as “State”, party of the first part, and 
Entity Name , hereinaf ter called Name for Contract , 

 
 

 

party of the second part, is to become effective when fully executed by both parties. 
 
 

WITNESSETH 
 

WHEREAS, on the day day of month of the year , 20 XX , the governing 
body for the Name for Contract 

 
 

, entered into Resolution/Ordinance No. Ordinance 
 

 

hereinaf ter identified by reference, authorizing the Name for Contract 

agreement with the State; and 

 
 

’s participation in this 

 
WHEREAS, the Name for Contract 

maintenance and operation of a public 

has requested the State to permit the construction, 

Public work to be installed 

on the highway right of way, (ROADWAY Highway Name CONTROL SECTION NO. Ctrl No. ). 
 

 
 

(General description of area including either the control number or GPS coordinates.) 
 
 

shown graphically by the preliminary conceptual site plan in Exhibit “A” and being more specifically 

described by metes and bounds of Exhibit “B”, which are attached and made a part hereof; and 
 

WHEREAS, the State has indicated its willingness to approve the establishment of such facilities 
and other uses conditioned that the Name for Contract will enter into agreements with the State for 

 
 

the purpose of determining the respective responsibilities of the Name for Contract and the State with 
 

 

reference thereto, and conditioned that such uses are in the public interest and will not damage the highway 

facilities, impair safety, impede maintenance or in any way restrict the operation of the highway facility, all as 

determined from engineering and traffic investigations conducted by the State. 



Form 2044 (Rev. 8/21) 
Page 2 of 10 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of  the premises and of  the mutual covenants and 

agreements of the parties hereto to be by them respectively kept and performed as hereinafter set forth, i t  

is agreed as follows: 

1. DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

Name for Contract will prepare or provide for the construction plans for the facility, and will provide 

for the construction work as required by said plans at no cost to the State. Said plans shall include the 

design of the access control, necessary horizontal and vertical clearances for highway s truc tures , 

adequate landscape treatment, adequate detail to ensure compliance with applicable structural design 

standards, sufficient traffic control provisions, and general layout. They shall also delineate and define 

the construction responsibilities of both parties hereto. Completed plans will be submitted to State for 

review and approval and when approved shall be attached to the agreement and made a part thereof  

in all respects. Construction shall not commence until plans have been approved by the State. Any 

future revisions or additions shall be made after prior written approval of the State.  Any sidewalks,   

curb ramps and other pedestrian elements to be constructed, either on site or off site, by the 
Name for Contract shall be in accordance with the requirements of Title II of  the Americans With

 

Disabilities Act (ADA) and with the Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS). Elements constructed by the 
Name for Contract and found not to comply with ADA or TAS shall be corrected at the entire expense

 

of  the Name for Contract .

2. INSPECTION
Ingress and egress shall be allowed at all times to such facility for Federal Highway Administ ration

personnel and State Forces and equipment when highway maintenance operations are necessary,

and for inspection purposes; and upon request, all parking or other activities for periods required  for

such operations will be prohibited.

3. PARKING REGULATIONS
Parking regulations shall be established limiting parking to single unit  motor vehicles of  size and

capacity no greater than prescribed for 11/2 ton trucks, such vehicles to conform in s ize and use to

governing laws. Parking shall be permitted only in marked spaces.

Parking shall be prohibited when a security threat, as determined by TxDOT, exists.



Form 2044 (Rev. 8/21) 
Page 3 of 10 

 

4. PROHIBITION/SIGNS 
Regulations shall be established prohibiting the parking of  vehicles transporting f lammable or 

explosive loads and prohibiting use of the area in any manner for peddling,  advert ising or o ther 

purposes not in keeping with the objective of a public facility. The erection of signs other than those 

required for proper use of the area will be prohibited. All signs shall be approved by the State prior to 

the actual erection. 
 

5. RESPONSIBILITIES 

Timely maintenance, repair and operation of the facility shall be entirely the responsibility of the 
Name for Contract . Such responsibility shall not be transferred, assigned or conveyed to 

 
 

a third party without the advanced written approval of the State. These responsibilities expressly 

include the timely maintenance and repair of any portion of the facility necessary to comply with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act. Further, such responsibility shall include picking up trash, mowing and 

otherwise keeping the facility in a clean and sanitary condition, and surveillance by police patrol to 

eliminate the possible creation of a nuisance or hazard to the public. Hazardous or unreasonably 

objectionable smoke, fumes, vapor or odors shall not be permitted to rise above the grade line of the 

highway, nor shall the facility subject the highway to hazardous or unreasonably objectionable 

dripping, droppings or discharge of any kind, including rain or snow. 

If  the State determines that Name for Contract has failed to comply with these responsibilities, 

it will perform the necessary work and charge Name for Contract the actual cost of the work. 
 

 

 
6. FEES 

Any fees levied for use of the facilities in the area shall be nominal and no more than are sufficient to 

defray the cost of construction, maintenance and operations thereof, and shall be subject to State 

approval. 

A. Retention Period. The Name for Contract shall maintain all books, documents, papers, 
 

 

accounting records and other evidence pertaining to fees collected and costs (hereinafter called 

the Records). The Name for Contract shall make the records available during the term of 
 

 

the Agreement and for four years from the date the Agreement is terminated, until completion of 

all audits, or until pending litigation has been completely and fully resolved, whichever occurs last. 

B. Audit Report. If fees are collected by the    Name for Contract    f or the use of  the faci l i ty 

under this agreement, the Name for Contract will provide the State an annual audit report 

detailing the fees collected for the use of  the facility and the costs associated with constructing, 
maintaining, and operating the facility within the same period.   If  the report shows more fees 

collected than expenses for the construction, operation, or maintenance of  the  facility  the  
Name for Contract must provide a multiple year plan detailing how the additional revenue 

will be used for construction, operation, or maintenance of the facility. 



Form 2044 (Rev. 8/21) 
Page 4 of 10 

C. Availability. The State or any of its duly authorized representatives, the Federal Highway 

Administration, the United States Department of Transportation, Office of Inspector General, and

the Comptroller General shall have access to the Name for Contract 's records that are

directly pertinent to this Agreement for the purpose of making audits and examinations.

7. TERMINATION UPON NOTICE

This provision is expressly made subject to the rights herein granted to both parties to terminate this

agreement upon notice, and upon the exercise of any such right by either party, all obligations herein

to make improvements to said facility shall immediately cease and terminate and
Name for Contract shall be responsible for the facility's timely removal at no cost to the State. 

 

If  the State determines that Name for Contract has failed to timely remove the facility, it will 

perform the necessary work and charge Name for Contract the actual cost of the work. 

8. MODIFICATION/TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
If  in the sole judgment of  the State it is found at any future time that traf f ic conditions have so

changed that the existence or use of the facility is impeding maintenance,  damaging the highway

facility, impairing safety or that the facility is not being properly operated, that it constitutes a

nuisance, is abandoned, or if for any other reason it is the State’s judgment that such facility is not  in

the public interest, this agreement under which the facility was constructed may be: (1) modif ied if

corrective measures acceptable to both parties can be applied to eliminate the objectionable features

of  the facility; or (2) terminated and the use of the area as proposed herein discontinued.

9. PROHIBITION OF STORAGE OF FLAMMABLE MATERIALS

All structures located or constructed within the area covered by the agreement shall be fire resistant.

The storage of flammable, explosive or hazardous materials is prohibited. Operations deemed to be

a potential fire hazard shall be subject to regulation by the State.

10. RESTORATION OF AREA
The Name for Contract shall provide written notification to the State that such facility will be

discontinued for the purpose defined herein.  The Name for Contract shall, within thirty (30) days

from the date of said notification, clear the area of all facilities that were its construction responsibility 

under this agreement and restore the area to a condition satisfactory to the State.

11. PREVIOUS AGREEMENTS

It is understood that this agreement in no way modifies or supersedes the terms and provisions of any

existing agreements between the parties hereto.



Form 2044 (Rev. 8/21) 
Page 5 of 10 

12. INDEMNIFICATION
THE     Name for Contract     WILL INDEMNIFY THE STATE AGAINST ANY AND ALL
DAMAGES AND CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES, INCLUDING THOSE RESULTING FROM INJURY

OR DEATH OF PERSONS OR FOR LOSS OF OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY, ARISING OUT OF,

INCIDENT TO OR IN ANY MANNER CONNECTED WITH THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION

OR MAINTENANCE OF THE FACILITY, WHICH INDEMNIFICATION SHALL EXTEND TO
AND INCLUDE ANY AND ALL COURT COSTS, ATTORNEY’S FEES AND EXPENSES

RELATED TO OR CONNECTED WITH ANY CLAIMS OR SUITS FOR DAMAGES AND SHALL,

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING BY THE STATE TO DO SO, ASSIST THE STATE OR RELIEVE

THE STATE FROM DEFENDING ANY SUCH SUITS BROUGHT AGAINST IT. THE
INDEMNIFICATION OF THE STATE SHALL EXTEND FOR A PERIOD OF TWO (2) YEARS

BEYOND THE DATE OF TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

DURING EACH YEAR WHILE THERE IS ANY LIABILITY BY REASON OF THE
AGREEMENT CONTAINED IN THIS SUBSECTION OF THIS RESOLUTION, INCLUDING
THE CALENDAR YEAR 20XX , THE City Name (CITY) SHALL COMPUTE

  

AND ASCERTAIN THE RATE AND AMOUNT OF AD VALOREM TAX, BASED ON THE

LATEST APPROVED TAX ROLLS OF SAID ENTITY, WITH FULL ALLOWANCES BEING
MADE FOR TAX DELINQUENCIES AND COSTS OF TAX COLLECTION, WHICH WILL BE
SUFFICIENT TO RAISE AND PRODUCE THE MONEY REQUIRED TO PAY ANY SUMS

WHICH MAY BE OR BECOME DUE DURING ANY SUCH YEAR, IN NO INSTANCE TO BE
LESS THAN TWO (2%) PER CENT OF SUCH OBLIGATION, TOGETHER WITH INTEREST
THEREON, BECAUSE OF THE OBLIGATION HEREIN ASSUMED.

SAID RATE AND AMOUNT OF AD VALOREM TAX IS HEREBY ORDERED TO BE LEVIED

AND IS HEREBY LEVIED AGAINST ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY IN SAID ENTITY FOR
EACH YEAR WHILE ANY LIABILITY EXISTS BY REASON OF THE OBLIGATION
UNDERTAKEN BY THIS SUBSECTION OF THIS RESOLUTION, AND SAID AD VALOREM

TAX SHALL BE ASSESSED AND COLLECTED EACH SUCH YEAR UNTIL ALL OF THE
OBLIGATIONS HEREIN INCURRED SHALL HAVE BEEN DISCHARGED AND ALL

LIABILITY HEREUNDER DISCHARGED.

No party to this agreement intends to waive, relinquish, limit or condition its general governmental

immunity from liability in any way.

Each party agrees and acknowledges that it is not an agent, servant, or employee of the other party

and that under this provision each party is responsible only for i ts own acts and for those of  i ts

agents, servants, independent contractors or employees. Such responsibility includes, but is not 



Form 2044 (Rev. 8/21) 
Page 6 of 10 

 

limited to any claims or amounts arising or recovered under the “Workers Compensation Law,” the Texas 

Tort Claims Act, Chapter 101, Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code; or any other applicable laws o r 

regulations, all as time to time may be amended. 

Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as creating any liability in favor of any third party 

against the State and the Name for Contract . Additionally, this agreement shall not ever be 
 

 

construed as relieving any third party from any liability against the State. Furthermore, the 
Name for Contract shall become fully subrogated to the State's rights of recovery and shall be 

 

entitled to maintain any action over and against any third party who may be liable for damages.  The 

State agrees to execute and deliver instruments and papers and to otherwise do that which is 

necessary to secure such rights. 

13. INSURANCE 
The Name for Contract , shall provide necessary safeguards to protect the public on State 

 

maintained highways including adequate insurance for payment of any damages which might result 

during the construction, maintenance, repair and operation of the facility. 

shall include TxDOT as an additional insured by endorsement in 

Name for Contract 

Name for Contract 's 

commercial general liability insurance policy. Prior to beginning work on the State's right of way, the 
Name for Contract 's construction contractor shall submit to the State a completed insurance 

 
 

form (TxDOT Form No. 1560) or appropriate certificate of self-insurance and shall maintain the 

required coverage during the construction of the facility. 

14. USE OF RIGHT OF WAY 
It is understood that the State by execution of this agreement does not impair or relinquish the State’s 

right to use such land for highway purposes when it is required for the construction or re-construction 

of  the traffic facility for which it was acquired, nor shall use of the land under such agreement ever be 

construed as abandonment by the State of such land acquired for highway purposes, and the State 

does not purport to grant any interest in the land described herein but merely consents to such use to 

the extent its authority and title permits. 
 

15. ADDITIONAL CONSENT REQUIRED 
The State asserts only that it has sufficient title for highway purposes. The Name for Contract 

shall be responsible for obtaining such additional consent, permits or agreement as may be 

necessary due to this agreement. This includes, but is not limited to, appropriate permits and 

clearances for environmental, ADA and public utilities. 
 

16. FHWA ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

If  the Facility is located on the Federal-Aid Highway System, “ATTACHMENT A”, which states 

additional requirements as set forth in the Federal Highway Administration’s Title 23, Code of Federal 

Regulations, § 710, shall be attached to and become a part of this agreement. 



Form 2044 (Rev. 8/21) 
Page 7 of 10 

 

17. CIVIL RIGHTS ASSURANCES 
The      Name for Contract     , for itself, its personal representatives, successors and interests and 

assigns, as part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running 

with the land that: (1) no persons, on the grounds of race, color, sex, age, national origin, religion or 

disabling condition, shall be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise 

subjected to discrimination in the use of said facility; (2) that in the construction of any improvements 

on, over or under such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the ground of race, 

color, sex, age, national origin, religion or disabling condition, shall be excluded from participation in, 

denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination; (3) that the 
Name for Contract shall use the premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by 

or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office 

of  the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination in Federally-Assisted programs of  the Department of  

Transportation - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulat ions may 

be amended. 
 

That if  in the event of any breach of the above non-discrimination covenants, the State shall have the 

right to terminate the agreement and reenter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and 

hold the same as if said agreement had never been made or issued. 
 

18. AMENDMENTS 

Any changes in the time frame, character or responsibilities of the parties hereto shall be enacted by 

a written amendment executed by both parties hereto. 

 
19. LEGAL CONSTRUCTION 

In case one or more of  the provisions contained in this agreement shall for any reason be held 

invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceabili ty  shall not  

af fect any provision hereof  and this agreement shall be construed as if  such invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable provision had never been contained in this agreement. 

20. AUDIT 

The   State   may   conduct  an  audit  or  investigation  of   any   aspect  of   this  agreement. The 
Name for Contract must provide the State with access to any information the State considers 

relevant to the investigation or audit. The audit can include, but is not limited to, any contract for 

construction or maintenance of any facility or structure authorized by this agreement or any 

contract to provide a service to the Name for Contract 

agreement. 

if  that service is authorized by this 



Form 2044 (Rev. 8/21) 
Page 8 of 10 

 

21. AUTHORITY OF STATE AUDITOR 
The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving funds f rom the s tate 

directly under the contract or indirectly through a subcontract under the contract . Acceptance of  

funds directly under the contract or indirectly through a subcontract  under this contract  ac ts as  

acceptance of the authority of the state auditor, under the direction of the legislative audit committee, 

to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those funds. An entity that is the subject of  an 

audit or investigation must provide the state auditor with access to any information the state auditor 

considers relevant to the investigation or audit. 

 
22. NOTICES 

All notices required under this agreement shall be mailed or hand delivered to the following 

respective addresses: 

STATE (Name of other party) 
(Mailing Address) (Mailing Address) 

Texas Department of Transportation 
Maintenance Division 
125 East 11th Street 
Austin, Texas 78701-2483 

Address Name 
Address Name 

Address Road/Street/Hwy 
Address City/State/Zip 

 

 

23. TIMELY PAYMENT 
When required by any provision of this agreement requires a payment to be made to the State, the 

other party hereto shall within thirty (30) days from receipt of the State's written notificat ion pay the 

State for the full cost of repairing any damages to the highway facility which may result from the other 

party's construction, maintenance, repair or operation of the facility. 

24. WARRANTS 
The signatories to this agreement warrant that each has the authority to enter into this agreement on 

behalf  of the party represented. 
List of Attached Exhibits: 

Exhibit A - General Layout 
Exhibit B - Metes and Bounds Description 
Exhibit C - Approved Construction Plans 
Exhibit D - Certificate of Insurance (TxDOT Form 1560) 
Exhibit E - Attachment A (FHWA Additional Requirements) 



Form 2044 (Rev. 8/21) 
Page 9 of 10 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto affixed their signature, the 
 
 
State on the 

on the 

day of 

day of  
 
, 20 . 

, 20 , and the 

   

 
 
 
 

 

(Name of  other party) 
 
 
By:    

Signature 

STATE OF TEXAS 
Executed and approved for the Texas 
Transportation Commission for the purpose and  
ef fect of activating and/or carrying out the o rders,  
and established policies or work programs 
heretofore approved and authorized by the Texas 
Transportation Commission. 

 
     By:    

Printed Name Director, Maintenance Division 
 
 
 
 

  

Title Printed Name 
 
 
 

Agency Date 
 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED: 
 

Contact Office and Telephone No. 
 

District Engineer 
 
 
 

Printed Name 
 
 
 

Date 



Form 2044 (Rev. 8/21) 
Page 10 of 10 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
 

Inasmuch as this project is on the Federal-Aid highway system, the following additional requirements as 

applicable with the Federal Highway Administration’s Title 23, Code of Federal Regulations, § 710.105. 

 
1. Any significant revision in the design or construction of the facility shall receive prior approval by the 

Texas Department of Transportation subject to concurrency by the FHWA. 

 
2. Any change in the authorized use of real property interest shall receive prior approval by the Texas 

Department of Transportation subject to concurrence by the FHWA. 

 
3. Real property interest shall not be transferred, assigned or conveyed to another party without prior 

Texas Department of Transportation approval subject to concurrence by the FHWA. 

 
4. This agreement will be revocable in the event that the real property interest facility ceases to be used 

or is abandoned. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT E 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Chief Pleasant Brooks MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Fire Department AGENDA ITEM: VII-8 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approval of the annual contract (October 1, 2023 through 
September 30, 2024) for the fire and ambulance service with Tarrant County 
Emergency Services District No. 1 and authorizing the Mayor to execute said contract. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  EDC: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD PB Admin: 
 JT 

BACKGROUND:  
This is an annual contract with Tarrant County Emergency Services for fire and/or ambulance.  Services are to 
provide fire protection to real and personal property and emergency medical services (EMS) located outside the 
boundaries of the City and within such distance as the City may be reasonably expected to render service in case 
of emergency service needs. 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends approval of the 2023-2024 contract with Tarrant County Emergency Services. 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  
District agrees to pay to City the total sum of $156,000.00 during this contract year (increased by 8,000.00 from 
previous year) by making equal quarterly payments during the months of January 2024, April 2024, July 2024 
and October 2024 for fire protection services in the service area outlined in Exhibit “A” of the contract.  
 
Additionally, for EMS, if provided by City under this Agreement, the District agrees to pay to the City an amount 
based upon the City’s proportionate per run share determined by dividing the sum of $2,500,000.00, (increased 
by 500,000.00 from previous year) the amount anticipated being available for such payments, by the total points 
per service run as established by the 1998-1999 Rules and Regulations adopted by District, attached as Exhibit 
“B” of the contract, for all EMS runs made in the areas served by the district and multiplying that quotient by 
the total number of points accrued by the City for that quarter of the service year. The District will make quarterly 
payments of the amount due the City during the months of February 2024, May 2024, August 2024 and 
November 2024.   
In addition, Exhibit D of the contract specifies: 
 

GRANT FROM DISTRICT 
(Items included in the categories below are based on the agency’s itemized request and will be reimbursed in 

strict compliance with the agency’s grant submission.) 
Grant Purpose Amount 

SCBA RIT-Pak III $3,000.00 
Rope rescue equipment $14,000.00 
IV pump sets and accessories $8,000.00 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Contract, with Exhibits A, B, C and D 

 









































 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Julie Hepler MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Main Street AGENDA ITEM: VII-9 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approving a special permit for the Christmas in Crowley 
Lighted Parade.   

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW BB/ME 
Dept 

Directo CW HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD MR FD CS Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  
 
With the completion of the Crowley Crossing Plaza in November, staff is thrilled to announce that the 
annual Christmas event will take place at this location on December 2, 2023. This much-anticipated 
event will feature a traditional tree lighting and other festivities. A new addition to this event is a 
dazzling lighted parade down the newly renovated Main Street, marking the beginning of the 
celebrations. Following the parade, the plaza will come alive with activities such as photos with Santa, 
face painting, cookie decorating, bounce houses, and more. On the main stage, enjoy captivating 
performances by schools, organizations, choirs, and dancers. 
 
To ensure a smooth event, preparations for closing Main Street will commence on Friday. On that day, 
on-street parking along West Main will be fenced off, and clear signage will be installed to notify drivers 
of the street closure times for the following day. The parade will assemble at 512 Peach Street, moving 
east along Main Street. It will pass through the east roundabout, head north on Roberts to Mission, and 
culminate behind City Hall.  

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Council consideration is respectfully requested. 
 

FISCAL INFORMATION:  

 
$27,000 is allocated for Christmas in Crowley and Lighted Parade in the 23-24 FY budget. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Registration Form 
2.  Event Permit 

 



Christmas in Crowley  
Lighted Parade 

 
Saturday, December 2, 2023 

  
Parade Entry Form     No Entry Fee 
 Parade line up begins at 4:30 PM at the former CISD building at 512 Peach St 
 Parade begins at 6 PM 
 All entries are required to have Christmas Lights 
 Candy is NOT ALLOWED to be thrown from floats.  Walkers accompanying floats may hand out 

candy to the crowd.  Walkers must keep up with their float at all times.   
 Be creative, festive and have fun decorating!  Prizes will be awarded for 1st, 2nd, & 3rd place.  

Awards will be presented on stage at the plaza following the parade.  
 Registration must be submitted no later than 12 PM on December 1st. 

Email form to jhepler@ci.crowley.tx.us.    Forms also accepted at City Hall or Crowley Rec Center. 
Mail to:  City of Crowley, 201 E Main Street, Crowley, Tx 76036 Attn: Julie Hepler.    

 NO SANTA CLAUS PLEASE!  Santa will be riding in the parade on a city float.   
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Individual/Organization______________________________________________________________ 
1st Contact Person ___________________________________Phone Number __________________ 
Address: __________________________________________________________________________ 
Email: ____________________________________________________________________________ 
2nd Contact Person ___________________________________Phone Number __________________ 
Email: ____________________________________________________________________________ 
Float Description (circle all that apply)         
__Vehicle  __Truck/Trailer __Walkers        __ATV/golf cart        __Mini Cars                                     

 
**************  Waiver of Liability inserted here*** 
 
Photography Disclaimer: I hereby give The City of Crowley unlimited permission to use, for promotional 
purposes, any photographs of the participants named above that are made while participating in the 
Crowley Christmas Parade activities.   

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Route STARTS at 512 Peach St and ENDS on Mission Street. Parade will travel through 
the roundabout and exit Roberts Street and then Left on to East Mission to disperse. 

mailto:jhepler@ci.crowley.tx.us


Section 1 – Applicant Information 
Name of Applicant (must be on site during the event) Today's Date 

Address City State Zip 

Phone Number Cell Phone Number 

Email 

Section 2 – Sponsoring Organization Information 
Corporation/Organization Name of D.B.A. Type of Organization 

     For Profit    Non-Profit Other: 
Name of Contact Email: 

Address City State Zip 

Phone Number Cell Phone Number 

Section 2 – Event Information 
Name of Event Anticipated Daily Attendance 

Location of Event/physical address 

Property Owner Owner Phone 

Owner Email: Has the property owner given authorization to use property? 
Yes  No 

Detailed Description of  Event 

Date Time Day of Week
Setup    M      T      W          Th   F      Sat      Sun 
Event Start    M      T      W          Th   F      Sat      Sun 
Event End    M      T      W          Th   F      Sat      Sun 
Teardown    M      T      W          Th   F      Sat      Sun 
Additional Information: 

Special Events 
Permit Application 

City Secretary's Office 
201 E Main Street 
Crowley TX 76036 

(817) 297-2201 ext 4000

Permit applications shall be filed with the city secretary or designee for consideration on a first come first serve basis not less than 
21 days or more than 365 days before the date of the proposed use or activity.  In the event of a street closure, 
applications must be submitted not less than 45 days in advance. Due to the state department of transportation 
requirements, closure of any state highway for more than six (6) hours will require 90 days' advance notice to the city. 
The application will either be approved, approved with conditions, denied, or more information will be requested within five 
business days of submission to the city secretary. Due to the nature of some events, additional information may be requested. A 
deposit will be required for certain types of events. The deposits shall be set forth in the city fee schedule listed as Appendix A
to the City of Crowley Code of Ordinances.    

All applicants will be charged facility rental fees as appropriate and are expected to fully reimburse the City for all services 
related to event production which may include, but are not limited to, Police, Fire/EMS, Park and Facility Maintenance, Field 
Services, Sanitation, Street Engineering, Site Supervisors, Environmental, and all necessary permit fees including: Beer and Wine, 
Tent, Fireworks, Carnival, Sign, etc.  Applicants are responsible for returning City facilities and parks their original condition.  Daily 
fees will be assessed until all event equipment is removed from City premises. Full payment is due upon receipt of final invoice. 



Section 3 – Event Features 
Will there be an admission charge? Yes No If yes, list all price categories below. 

Will there be entertainment?   Yes No If yes, please attach a complete list of entertainment. 
A complete list of entertainment will be required before final approval.  Once approved, no changes may be made unless authorized. 

Will sound amplification be used at the event? Yes No If yes, explain below 

Will merchandise and/or food items be sold?  Yes No If yes, please attach a complete list of vendors. 
Booths will need to be inspected and have proper food handling permits 

Have you hired a licensed professional emergency medical service provider to manage your event's medical plan?  If yes please list below. 
(Fee may be charged for Emergency Service personnel) Yes No 
Medical Service Provider Phone 

Will the event include any of the following? (Indicate on site plan and/or vendor list) 
Tents or Canopies   Yes No Complete Tent Worksheet and attach with site plan 

Tents require temporary use permits issued by the city upon Fire Department review (additional fees may be applicable). 
Temporary tents must adhere to the International Fire Code 

Inflatables Yes No Total Sq Ft: 
If inflatable exceeds 400 sq ft, additional permit is required 

Company Contact name and phone 

Fireworks/Pyrotechnics   Yes No 
Fireworks/Pyrotechnics require permits from the City Fire Department (additional fees may be applicable) 

Temporary Fencing Yes No 
Provide accurate dimensions of fenced area on site plan. 

Temporary fencing requires temporary use permits issued by the city (additional fees may be applicable). 
Temporary restrooms or refuse collection provided? Yes No 
(All trach and debris must be removed) 

Company Contact  name and phone 

Carnival/Amusement Rides Yes No 
A separate Special Use Permit may be required. (additional fees may be applicable) 

Company Contact  name and phone 

Signs / Banners Yes No 
A separate Sign Permit may be required. (additional fees may be applicable) 

Company Contact  name and phone 

Will animals be used in conjunction with event? Yes No If yes, describe below. 

Description: 

Is this a run, walk or parade?   Yes No 
If yes, attach a map identifying assembly location and route on site plan.  Must be submitted 21-days prior to event.  
(Fee may be charged for Public Service Personnel) 

Section 4 – Roadways and Sidewalks 
Does the event propose using, closing or blocking any of the following   If yes, specify location and duration on site map.  
(Fee may be charged for Public Service personnel) 
 City Streets Yes No . City Sidewalks Yes No 

City Right-of-Ways Yes No Public Parking Lots Yes No 

Section 5 – Use of City Utilities (Fee may be charged for the use of City Utilities) 
Will any City electric hookups be used? Yes No Electric Location including amperage 

Will any City water hookups be used? Yes No Water Location(s) 

Will waste water/gray water be generated? Yes No Is so, how will it be disposed? 

Sound amplification: 



 

Section 6 – Alcohol 
Will there be alcohol at the event?    Yes No  

At no time will alcohol be distributed or consumed in City Parks and/or streets to include Park Pavilions.   
All activities involving alcohol will require the presence of an off-duty City police officer.  The applicant will be required to pay for an officer 
to be present for a minimum of 3 hours or the full amount of time that alcohol is served.  Consumption of alcohol without the presence of an 

officer or a violation of the provision of the City Ordinances will result in forfeiture of the rental deposit.  

The Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) requires specific and specialized permits for selling/serving alcohol. These permits will be 
based on the parameters and scope of the desired service and the type of event. Due to the numerous scenarios that may be involved in your 
event, it is impossible to outline the requirements in this application. It is your responsibility to contact the TABC office and speak to an 

Agent who will be the entity for permission and, if approved, provide the exact permit(s) required.   
Permission by the City to hold a Special Event does not guarantee permission from TABC to serve/sell alcohol. Your event may be approved 

by the City but the service and selling of alcohol is the domain of the TABC and may be denied at their discretion. 
Permission by the TABC to serve/sell alcohol at a Special Event does not guarantee permission of the City.   

Will alcohol be provided free of charge?    Yes No 

To be considered "free," there cannot be an expectation of receiving money.  You cannot charge for admission, ask for donations or accept 
tips.   Doing so would constitute a sale of alcohol and would require a Texas Alcohol Beverage Commission and City Permit. 

Will you be charging an entrance or registration fee?    Yes No 

Will the alcohol be sold?    Yes No 
If you answered Yes, a Texas Alcohol Beverage Commission and City Permit will be required. 

TABC License #_____________________________________ Expiration ______________________ 

 
Section 11 – Insurance Requirements 
The City of Crowley has established insurance requirements for those facility users, vendors and contractors entering into agreements 
with the City for the purpose of special events and activities.  Before commencing use or services under an agreement with the City of 
Crowley a certificate of insurance that complies with the requirements referenced below must be furnished. 
 
All special event applicants shall name the City of Crowley as an “Additional Insured” on all policies, and shall reflect this on a 
Certificate of Liability Insurance.  A pplicant shall obtain Certificates of Liability Insurance from all vendors participating in this event 
unless covered under the applicant’s insurance policy.  Separate Certificates of Insurance Liability shall be provided by all carnival and 
amusement companies and firework production companies and shall name the City of Crowley as “Additional Insured."  Additional 
coverage may be required depending upon the nature and scope of the event.  The City of Crowley reserves the right to evaluate the 
liability of each event and assess the required insurance limits.  Event permits will not be issued until all insurance requirements are 
satisfactorily met. 
 
The certificate must show: 
1.  The City of Crowley as “Additional Insured.” 
2.  General Liability Including: 
 Bodily injury 
 Property damage 
 Medical Expense 
 Personal Injury 
 
Organized League Play 
Any organization or group who is renting an athletic field for the purpose of organized league play must provide the following 
documents: 
1.  Certificate of Liability Insurance.  The city and the group or organization must be co-insured by the policy.  The policy must 
include a minimum of $500,000.00 per incident, with not less than $1,000,000.00 aggregate with the same remaining in effect for the 
term of this agreement. Failure to maintain such insurance shall be cause for immediate cancellation of event/reservation; 
2.  Health permit (if renting concession stand); 
3.  Player insurance; 
4.  State Charter; 
5.  Bylaws; 
6.  Schedule; and 
7.  Emergency contact information. 

 



Section 12 – Compliance with Laws and City Ordinances 
1.  The applicant will clean the grounds, remove equipment, and restore the permitted site after the event. 
2.  The applicant is responsible for providing parking assistance if required. 
3.  Adequate policing for crowd control must be provided by applicant.  Off duty officers are available by calling 817-297-2276. 
4.  The applicant will not nail, staple, or otherwise attach any event-connected signs to any guard post, sign post, utility pole or 
tree.  
5.  Admission to the event will not be limited to membership nor will any discrimination be made against a person because of race, 
creed, sex, color, age, or national origin in conducting the event.  Admission to view the event will be open to the general public 
without discrimination on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, or age.  Participation in the event may be limited 
to members of the sponsoring group, provided that the group does not unlawfully discriminate against participation in the event 
on grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, or age.  Request for Special Event Application citing special circumstances 
for participation requiring gender or age discrimination must be accompanied by an exceedingly persuasive justification. 
6.  If necessary, the applicant will furnish a map showing the area where the special event is to be conducted. 

 
 

Section 13 – Acknowledgement and Signature 

 
I hereby certify that I have read and examined this application and know the same to be true and correct.  All provisions of laws 
and ordinances governing this type of event will be complied with whether specified herein or not.  The granting of a permit does 
not presume to give authority to violate or cancel the provisions of any other state or local ordinances regulating this type of event 
or the use of any land or buildings. 
 
I hereby certify that I have received the property owners consent to utilize above location for the period of time and purpose 
stated. 
 
I further understand that any deviation from this Application could result in the City closing down or canceling the Event. I 
understand that a Special Event Permit must be approved by the City of Crowley prior to the occurrence of this Event. The 
issuance of that permit is contingent upon the compliance with the Special Event Application and acceptance of all listed 
stipulations or conditions of the Special Event Permit. 

Signature: Date: 

 
Section 13 – Acknowledgement and Signature 

Included N/A 
   Certificate of Liability Insurance 
   Detailed Site Plan 
   Route Map 
   Amusement Ride Certification of Inspection 
   Tent Permit Application 

Public Works 

 Approved Denied Initials 

Remarks 

Fire Department 

 Approved Denied Initials 

Remarks 

Police Department 

 Approved Denied Initials 

Remarks 

Recreation Center  

 Approved Denied Initials 

Remarks 

City Council 

 Approved Denied Initials 

Remarks 

 
 
  



Application for Tent Permit 

Section 1 – Applicant Information 
Name of Applicant Today's Date 

Address City State Zip 

Phone Number Cell Phone Number 

Email 

Section 2 – Person/Organization/Contractor Responsible for Erection of Tent 
Organization 

Address City State Zip 

Phone Number Cell Phone Number 

Email 

Section 3 - Tent Information
Location of Tent Number of Tents Zoning District 

Purpose of Tent/Usage Description 

Description of Tent (if multiple list details of each tent) 
Size (ft) Area (sq ft) Tent Separation (ft) Side Walls Additional Info 
1. x Yes No 
2. x Yes No 
3. x Yes No 
4. x Yes No 
5. x Yes No 
Attach site plan which includes the following: 

1. Accurate site plan with dimensions from property lines and other structures
2. Floor plan showing all required exits, no smoking signs, square footage and height of structure
3. Occupant Load per manufacturer guidelines
4. Membrane type and Fire Resistance Certification (must be attached)
5. Locations of fire extinguishers.
6. Location of parking
7. Location and distance of all heat producing equipment
8. Location and distance of all generators

Date to be erected Date to be taken down 

I hereby certify that I have received the property owners consent to erect a temporary tent at the above location for the period of time and 
purpose stated. 

I agree to meet requirements of the International Fire Code regarding tents and other membrane structures and all other regulations or 
ordinances of the City.  I acknowledge that violations of any of the codes, regulations or ordinances will result in immediate revocation of 
this permit.   

Signature Date 

Planning and Development 
Approved Disapproved 

Notes/Special Conditions: 

Fire Marshal 
Approved Disapproved 

Notes/Special Conditions: 

Fee - Date Paid Amount Paid Permit Issued (Number) 

Tent Application



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Matt Elgin MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Utilities AGENDA ITEM: VII-10 

SUBJECT:  Discuss and consider approving Resolution R10-2023-402, a resolution 
accepting conveyance of a 20-foot-wide drainage easement on lot 7R, block 12 
of the Mesa Vista Medical Center.   

COORDINATION: 

Finance LW City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW ME 
Dept 

Director ME HR N/A Comm 
Services  EDC: 

 JT 
City 

Attorney RA PD  FD N/A Admin: 
 LW 

BACKGROUND:  

The Texas Health Huguley Inc (Owner) would like to construct an addition to their existing medical 
building located at the 200 Rock Hill Drive.  The existing building sits on Lot 8R of Block 12.  That 
parcel of land (lot 8R block 12) contains a public storm water facility that sits in an existing drainage 
easement.  The location of the existing storm water line is restricting their ability to expand their 
building to the north, as placing permanent structures within an existing easement is restricted.  This 
storm water facility will need to be relocated to allow the Owner to expand their building.  An easement 
for the storm water facility will need to be conveyed for the new storm line to be placed in.  The Owner 
has requested the ability to relocate the storm water facility and abandon the existing easement.  The 
abandonment of the existing easement will be requested in a future action item.   
 
Texas Health Huguley, Inc. owns the adjacent lot (Lot 7R Block 12) to the north as well.  They have 
proposed (at their expense) relocating the public storm water facility to the adjacent lot.  They are 
offering for City of Crowley Council consideration the conveyance of a drainage easement on Lot 7R 
Block 12 for the proposed relocation of the public storm water facility.     
 
Once acceptance of the easement is approved, the relocation of the public storm water facility can occur.   

RECOMMENDATION:  

City Staff recommends acceptance of the conveyance of a new drainage easement on Lot 7R Block 12 
of the Mesa Vista Medical Center addition.   

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

The financial impact to the City of Crowley shall be the sum of $10 for the purchase of the easement 
from the grantor (Texas Health Huguley, Inc.).  The grantor will be responsible for the construction of 
the new storm facility.   

ATTACHMENTS:  

Drainage Easement Agreement 
Exhibit “A” (Surveyor description of  Drainage Easement) 

 



Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. R10-2023-402 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CROWLEY, 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACCEPT A DRAINAGE EASEMENT 
DEDICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Texas Health Huguley, Inc. desires to expand an existing building on their property, 

and in order to do so, they must relocate storm water facilities to a new location and seek abandonment of 
the existing drainage easement; and 

 
WHEREAS, Texas Health Huguley, Inc. has offered to dedicate the new drainage easement 

needed on Lot 7R, Block 12, to the north of their existing building, and Texas Health Huguley, Inc. will 
relocate the drainage facilities to the new location at their own expense; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Crowley desires to accept the dedication of the easement described above 
and to authorize the Mayor to execute the acceptance of the easement. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CROWLEY, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 

 The Council hereby authorizes the Mayor to accept on behalf of the City of Crowley the dedication 
of the 20 ft. wide drainage easement on Lot 7R, Block 12, Mesa Vista Medical Center, from Texas Health 
Huguley, Inc. 

 
SECTION 2. 

 
The Mayor and the City Secretary, in consultation with the City Attorney, are authorized and 

directed to take all actions necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 

SECTION 3. 
 

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption by the City Council. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 19th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2023. 
 
      CITY OF CROWLEY 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
 Billy P. Davis, Mayor  

 
ATTEST:  
 
 
_______________________________  
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rob Allibon, City Attorney 










	00000a 10192023 Cover Sheet
	00000b 10192023 Attendance
	000b 10192023 City of Crowley Pavement Preservation Strategy
	City of Crowley� Pavement Survey Update�October 10, 2023
	Street Network Survey
	     Overall Street PCI Ratings 2023 – 83
	   2026 Predicted PCI Using Current Strategy - 69 
	    PCI Rating Index – Asphalt Roadways
	        PCI Rating Index – Concrete  Roadways
	                   Pavement Preservation 
	Maintenance Treatments - Asphalt Streets
	 Maintenance Treatments – Concrete Streets
	Asphalt Maintenance Versus Reconstruction 
	    Concrete Maintenance Versus Reconstruction
	Pavement Maintenance Strategy
	   Pavement Maintenance Strategy
	Street Selection Process
	   Street Selection Process
	Street Selection
	                    Moving Forward
	Slide Number 18

	01a 10192023 Staff Report for CC meeting minutes
	01b 10192023 Minutes for CC Meeting 21 Sep
	01b 10192023 Minutes for CC Meeting 26 Sep
	02a 10192023 Staff Report for TCTS
	02b 10192023 TCTS ILA Crowley 2023-2024
	04a 10192023 Staff Report CMAR for City Hall
	04b 10192023 Johnson Construction Services
	04c 10192023 City Hall Remodel CMAR Bid tabulations
	05a 10192023 staff report, TCPH ILA
	05b 10192023 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 092023
	06a 10192023 BAX Crowley Fort Worth_McPherson intersection
	06b 10192023 ORDINANCE_FW and Crowley BAX MCPHERSON INTRSCN
	06c 10192023 Exhibit A_part 1_ANNEX DISPLAY
	Sheets and Views
	SHT2


	06d 10192023 Exhibit A_part 2_ANNEX metes and bounds
	07a 10192023 staff report, contract with Safebuilt for backup
	07b 10192023 UPDATED Safebuilt-Crowley contract for back up services
	08a 10192023 Staff Report Special Event - Karis Grand Opening
	08b 10192023 special_event_application_2018_201806121033592438
	09a 10192023 Staff Report for Fee schedule update -Subdivision inspection fees
	09b 10192023 AppendixA Fee Schedule Subdivision Fees
	10a 10192023 TXDOT-FLOCK Staff Report
	10b 10192023 TxDOT Resolution for license plate readers
	10c 10192023 2044 - MUA (1) (1)
	MULTIPLE USE AGREEMENT
	1. DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION
	2. INSPECTION
	3. PARKING REGULATIONS
	4. PROHIBITION/SIGNS
	5. RESPONSIBILITIES
	6. FEES
	7. TERMINATION UPON NOTICE
	8. MODIFICATION/TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
	9. PROHIBITION OF STORAGE OF FLAMMABLE MATERIALS
	10. RESTORATION OF AREA
	11. PREVIOUS AGREEMENTS
	12. INDEMNIFICATION
	THE     Name for Contract     WILL INDEMNIFY THE STATE AGAINST ANY AND ALL DAMAGES AND CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES, INCLUDING THOSE RESULTING FROM INJURY OR DEATH OF PERSONS OR FOR LOSS OF OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY, ARISING OUT OF, INCIDENT TO OR IN ANY MANNER CON...
	DURING EACH YEAR WHILE THERE IS ANY LIABILITY BY REASON OF THE AGREEMENT CONTAINED IN THIS SUBSECTION OF THIS RESOLUTION, INCLUDING
	, THE
	(CITY) SHALL COMPUTE
	AND ASCERTAIN THE RATE AND AMOUNT OF AD VALOREM TAX, BASED ON THE LATEST APPROVED TAX ROLLS OF SAID ENTITY, WITH FULL ALLOWANCES BEING MADE FOR TAX DELINQUENCIES AND COSTS OF TAX COLLECTION, WHICH WILL BE SUFFICIENT TO RAISE AND PRODUCE THE MONEY REQU...
	13. INSURANCE
	14. USE OF RIGHT OF WAY
	15. ADDITIONAL CONSENT REQUIRED
	16. FHWA ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS
	18. AMENDMENTS
	19. LEGAL CONSTRUCTION
	20. AUDIT
	21. AUTHORITY OF STATE AUDITOR
	22. NOTICES
	STATE (Name of other party)
	23. TIMELY PAYMENT
	24. WARRANTS
	STATE OF TEXAS
	APPROVAL RECOMMENDED:
	ATTACHMENT A


	11a 10192023 Staff Report - FD-TC Emergency Srvs Contract renewal 2023-2024
	11b 10192023 TCESD Contract 23-24
	12a 10192023 Communicator-Christmas Parade
	12b 10192023 Christmas Parade Registration Form
	12c 10192023 Special Event Permit Christmas in Crowley Parade
	14a 10192023 Staff Report - Storm Easement Rock Hill
	14b 10192023 Drainge Easement.216 Rock Hill
	14c 10192023 Drainage Easement from Grantor

	entity: City of Crowley
	name4contract: City
	day: day
	month: month of the year
	year2places: 23
	publicworks: Automated License Plate Readers
	hwy: Multiple
	ctrl_number: Ctrl No.
	ordinance: Ordinance
	year_pg5: 2023
	cityname: City of Crowley
	address1: City of Crowley
	address2: Police Department
	street_hwy: 617 West Business FM 1187
	city_zip: Crowley, Texas 76036
	20: 
	State on the: 
	on the: 
	day of: 
	day of_2: 
	20_2: 
	undefined: 
	Name of other party: City of Crowley (Police Dept)
	Printed Name: Kit Long
	Director Maintenance Division: 
	Title: Chief of Police
	Printed Name_2: 
	Agency: Crowley Police Department
	Date: 09/25/2023
	Contact Office and Telephone No: 817-297-2276
	District Engineer: 
	Printed Name_3: 
	Date_2: 
	Button5: 
	Name of Applicant must be on site during the event: Jessica Bennett
	Today s Date: 09/25/2023
	Address: Karis Blvd
	City: Crowley
	State: Texas
	Zip: 76036
	Phone Number: 2144974153
	Cell Phone Number: 2144974153
	Email: jbennett@tncdev.com
	CorporationOrganization Name of DBA: The Nehemiah Company
	Check Box 1: Yes
	Check Box 2: Off
	Check Box 3: Off
	Type of Organization For Profit NonProfit Other: 
	Name of Contact: Jessica Bennett
	Email_2: jbennett@tncdev.com
	Address_2: 2201 East Lamar Blvd, Suite 115
	City_2: Arlington
	State_2: Texas
	Zip_2: 76006
	Phone Number_2: 
	Cell Phone Number_2: 2144974153
	Name of Event: Pick of the Patch
	Anticipated Daily Attendance: 150
	Location of Eventphysical address: Karis Blvd, Crowley, Texas 76036
	Property Owner: The Nehemiah Company
	Owner Phone: 214-499-4654
	Owner Email: rkembel@tncdev.com
	Check Box 5: Yes
	Check Box 6: Off
	Detailed Description of  Event: We will be hosting a free and public Grand Opening event in the newest masterplanned community of Karis. It will include a pumpkin patch and an artisan market with food and beverages. This is an event for all ages to include many fall festivities.
	Setup: 10/28
	Setup 2: 9:00 AM
	Check Box 11: Off
	Check Box 12: Off
	Check Box 13: Off
	Check Box 14: Off
	Check Box 15: Off
	Check Box 16: Yes
	Check Box 17: Off
	Event Start: 10/28
	Event Start 2: 10:00 AM
	Check Box 31: Off
	Check Box 32: Off
	Check Box 33: Off
	Check Box 34: Off
	Check Box 35: Off
	Check Box 36: Yes
	Check Box 37: Off
	Event End: 10/28
	Event End 2: 2:00 PM
	Check Box 41: Off
	Check Box 42: Off
	Check Box 43: Off
	Check Box 44: Off
	Check Box 45: Off
	Check Box 46: Yes
	Check Box 47: Off
	Teardown: 10/28
	Teardown 2: 2:00 PM
	Check Box 51: Off
	Check Box 52: Off
	Check Box 53: Off
	Check Box 54: Off
	Check Box 55: Off
	Check Box 56: Yes
	Check Box 57: Off
	Additional Information: 
	Check Box 201: Off
	Check Box 202: Yes
	Will there be an admission charge Yes No If yes list all price categories below: 
	Check Box 203: Off
	Check Box 204: Yes
	Check Box 205: Yes
	Check Box 206: Off
	Sound amplification: We will have a DJ at the event.
	Check Box 207: Yes
	Check Box 208: Off
	Check Box 209: Yes
	Check Box 210: Off
	Medical Service Provider: Crowley FD will have a crew onsite.
	Phone: 
	Check Box 211: Yes
	Check Box 212: Off
	Check Box 213: Off
	Check Box 214: Yes
	Text1: 
	Company: 
	Contact name and phone: 
	Check Box 215: Off
	Check Box 216: Yes
	Check Box 217: Off
	Check Box 218: Yes
	Check Box 219: Yes
	Check Box 220: Off
	Company_2: Texas Loo
	Contact name and phone_2: 832-797-7909
	Check Box 221: Off
	Check Box 222: Yes
	Company_3: 
	Contact name and phone_3: 
	Check Box 224: Off
	Check Box 225: Yes
	Company_4: 
	Contact name and phone_4: 
	Check Box 226: Yes
	Check Box 227: Off
	Description: Petting Zoo from Oba Farms
	Check Box 228: Off
	Check Box 229: Yes
	Check Box 230: Off
	Check Box 231: Yes
	Check Box 232: Off
	Check Box 233: Yes
	Check Box 234: Off
	Check Box 235: Yes
	Check Box 236: Off
	Check Box 237: Yes
	Electric Location including amperage: No
	Water Locations: No
	Is so how will it be disposed: No
	Check Box 300: Yes
	Check Box 301: Off
	Check Box 302: Yes
	Check Box 303: Off
	Check Box 304: Off
	Check Box 305: Yes
	Check Box 306: Off
	Check Box 307: Yes
	TABC License: 
	Expiration: 
	Signature: 
	Check Box 500: Off
	Check Box 504: Off
	Check Box 508: Off
	Check Box 501: Off
	Check Box 502: Off
	Check Box 503: Off
	Check Box 505: Off
	Check Box 506: Off
	Check Box 507: Off
	Check Box 509: Off
	Check Box 400: Off
	Check Box 402: Off
	Text4: 
	Remarks: 
	Check Box 403: Off
	Check Box 404: Off
	Text5: 
	Remarks_2: 
	Check Box 405: Off
	Check Box 406: Off
	Text6: 
	Remarks_3: 
	Check Box 407: Off
	Check Box 408: Off
	Text7: 
	Remarks_4: 
	Check Box 409: Off
	Check Box 410: Off
	Text8: 
	Remarks_5: 
	Button1: 
	Name of Applicant: 
	Today s Date_2: 
	Address_3: 
	City_3: 
	State_3: 
	Zip_3: 
	Phone Number_3: 
	Cell Phone Number_3: 
	Email_3: 
	Organization: 
	Address_4: 
	City_4: 
	State_4: 
	Zip_4: 
	Phone Number_4: 
	Cell Phone Number_4: 
	Email_4: 
	Location of Tent: 
	Number of Tents: 
	Zoning District: 
	Purpose of TentUsage Description: 
	Text52: 
	Text51: 
	Area sq ft1 x: 
	Tent Separation ft1 x: 
	121: Off
	120: Off
	Additional InfoYes No: 
	Text54: 
	Text53: 
	Area sq ft2 x: 
	Tent Separation ft2 x: 
	123: Off
	122: Off
	Additional InfoYes No_2: 
	Text56: 
	Text55: 
	Area sq ft3 x: 
	Tent Separation ft3 x: 
	125: Off
	124: Off
	Additional InfoYes No_3: 
	Text58: 
	Text57: 
	Area sq ft4 x: 
	Tent Separation ft4 x: 
	127: Off
	126: Off
	Additional InfoYes No_4: 
	Text60: 
	Text59: 
	Area sq ft5 x: 
	Tent Separation ft5 x: 
	129: Off
	128: Off
	Additional InfoYes No_5: 
	Date to be erected: 
	Date to be taken down: 
	141: Off
	140: Off
	NotesSpecial Conditions: 
	143: Off
	142: Off
	NotesSpecial Conditions_2: 
	Fee Date Paid: 
	Amount Paid: 
	Permit Issued Number: 


